Hanover Fire Protection District

Profit and Loss

March 2023
TOTAL
Income
Earned Revenues 109,454.44
Fuel Rebates 1,950.93
‘Tota! Income B - B $111,405.37
GROSS PROFIT - - $111,405.37
Expenses
Adminsirative Expense
Bank Service Charge 28.77
Election 628.50
Office Supplies and Materials 550.70
Professional Services fees
Accounting 250.00
Legal Fees & Noticas 540.00
Total Professional Senvices fees S o 790.00
Recruitment Retention 150.75
Total Adminsfrative —_Eagpense - a a 2,148.72
Benefits
Health Insurance 1,479.58
Insurance - Workmans Comp 8,032.00
Total Banefts - o  e51158
Communications
Cellular Support 8,294.15
Web Page 276.00
Total Commuriicatiens - 8,570.15
PDues and Subscriptions Expense 150.00
Maintenance
Radio & Pager Maintenance 0.00
Stations Maintenance 2,210.7%
Vehicle Maintenance 54,174.09
Tetal Maintanance 56,384.88
Operation
Fuel and oil 3,452.75
Insurance -Liability 6,112.00
Medical Supplies Expendables 586.24
Telephone 608.96
Utilities 3,226.36
 Tetal Operaion - - 1399841
Other Miscellaneous Expenses
Volunteer FF Deployment 770.00
Total Other Miscallaneous Ex_penses' o5 R ' o ' ' 77060

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2023 10:30 AM GMT-06:00 112



Hanover Fire Protection District

Profit and Loss
March 2023

TOTAL
Payroll Expenses
Taxes 6,993.89
Wage 38,350.40
Total Payrall Expanses 45,344.29
Training
Training - Chief 1,675.78
Training - Fire 2,276.66
Total Trairing - 3,952.44
Total Expenses $140,828.47
e T e T
Other Income
Interest Income 38.84
Total Other Inceme $38.84
NET OTHER INCOME $38.84
NET INCOME $-28,384.26

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2023 10:30 AM GMT-06:00

212




Hanover Fire Protection District

Profit and Loss
January - March, 2023

TOTAL
Income
Eamed Revenues 124,401 .17
Contract Services 255.26
Total Eamed Revenues ' 124,656.43
Fuel Rebates 1,850.93
Total Inceme B o $126,607.36
GROSS PROFIT $126,607.36
Expenses
Adminstrative Expense
Bank Service Charge 86.52
Election 628.50
Office Supplies and Materials 842.66
Professional Services fees
Accounting 750.00
Legal Fees & Notices 540.00
Total Profosgional Senvices fees - o 1,290.00
Recruitment Retention 150.75
Tetal Admilnstrative Expense o - 2,998.43
Benefits
Health Insurance 2,463.02
Insurance - Workmans Comp 8,032.00
Total Banafits - - 10,495.62
Communications
Gellular Support 8,294.15
Web Page 276.00
Total Cammuriications 8,570.15
Dues and Subscriptions Expense 150.00
Ems Training 200.00
Maintenance
Radio & Pager Maintenance 660.00
Stations Maintenance 3,5622.53
Vehicle Maintenance 58,255.97
~ TotalMaintananee B o T 8243850
Operation
Fuel and oil 10,887.72
Insurance -Liability 6,112.00
Medical Supplies Expendables 4,429.94
Telephone 2,083.23
Utilities 4,028.32
Total Operaion - o - 27,541.21

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2023 10:28 AM GMT-08:00 12



Hanover Fire Protection District

Profit and Loss
January - March, 2023

TOTAL
Other Miscellaneous Expenses
Volunteer FF Deployment 770.00
Total Other Miscallaneous Expenses 770.00
Payroll Expenses
Taxes 12,291.29
Wage 66,769.83
Total Payrell Expensas 79,061.12
Training
Training - Chief 3.802.24
Training - Fire 3,492.13
Total Training B 7,294.37
Total Expanses - - $199,518.80
NET OPERATING INCOME S $-72,911.44
Other Income
Interest Income 119.59
Total Other Incame $11a.59
'NET OTHER INCOME $112.59
NET INCOME . $-72,791.85

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2623 10:29 AM GMT-06:00

2/2



Hanover Fire Protection District

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2023

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2023 10:28 AM GMT-06:00

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Asssis
Bank Accounts
Colorado Trust 4,198.61
UMB Checking-0624 133,041.42
UMB Money Mkt-5659 223,656.87
UMB MonMkt2-4912 119,680.87
~ Total Bank Accounts S o o . $480,57L.77
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 211.00
Total Accounts Recalvable - - $211.90
Qitier Current Assets
Generator 7.140.00
Payroll Corrections 27.00
Prepaid Insurance 0.00
Prepaid Repairs Stations 182 122,926.88
Undeposited Funds 0.00
Vol Disalbity Insurance 4,047.95
Total Other Current Assets ) - )  $134,141.83
Total Currant Assets o © $614,930.60
Fixed Assets
Accumulate Depreciation -098,343.33
Building improvements 2,797.60
Capital - Fence 3,817.00
Capital - Fixed Suppori Equip 72,149.38
Capital Lease-3511 Fire Truck 26,000.00
Fire Station - Improvements 55,405.70
Station 1 1,650.00
Station 2 - cost 223,801.81
Station 2 Expansion 422 526.14
Station 2 Office 0.00
Station 3 131,297.38
Station 3 Gas install 0.00
Total Fire-Station - Improvements - 834,681.03
Fixed Asset Software 30,615.26

1/4



Hanover Fire Protection District

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2023

TOTAL

Furniture & Equipment 15,802.02
2 New Radios 6,765.44
2007 Dodge Durango Console 1,577.99
2007 Light 13,602.10
3/4 HP Brown Pump - Well Pump 0.00
AEDs 2,530.24
Bunk Gear 7 Sets 0.00
Bunker Gear Sets 65,389.31
Cascade System £9,729.49
Computer- Mobile 8,0092.88
Equipment 1 0.00
Equipment 2 0.00
Extractor 8,585.48
Exftrication Equipment 33,182.00
Fire Hose 34,030.00
Laptop computer sets 4,415.85
Mechanical CPR Unit 11,814.50
Med Stair chairs 6.105.60
Metal Bldg 2011 0.00
Minitor 1l Pagers 0.00
Mob Radio 3,147.36
Network Page Net Convert 0.00
New Door 0.00
Office Equipment 17,019.83
PPR Comm Norwest 0.00
Radio (1) 2020 10,630.78
Radio 3570 0.00
Radio Motorlas 46,353.18
Radio/Pagers (2) 16,108.65
SCBAs (8) 71,777.39
TVs 2020 7,710.45
Units 1,439.88
Wildland Firefighting gear 80,428.01
Wildland Pump 5,335.00
Tetal Furniture & Equipment 501,574.54
Radio/Pager 2020 16,928.90
Shelters2020 4,483.70
Streamlight Fire Vulcan System 539.81
Surveillance Equipment 2020 7,119.97

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2023 10:28 AM GMT-08:00

24



Hanover Fire Protection District

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2023

TOTAL
Vehicles & Trucks 370,284.14
1989 Pierce Arrow Engine 17,000.00
1992 Chev Ambulance 2,000.00
1997 Pierce Engine 27,000.00
2 Fire Brush Truck -35,000.00
2000 Ford Ambulance 29,000.00
2003 Ford 250 & 2007 Dodge Dura 4,320.00
2008 Brush Truck 3 283,551.89
2008 Tanker 0.00
2009 Suburban 14,748.20
2013 Chevy Tahoe -19,170.00
2021 Chevy Silverado 57,098.44
2022 Chevy Ex Cab 85,718.90
Ambulance 2015 Chev 121,950.00
Chief Truck 31,496.56
Dep Chief Vehicle 16,731.41
Engine 3511(1999) 120,055.16
Equipment 17,858.64
Vehicle-Hose Roller 9,240.00
Total Equipment o 27,098.64
Fast Attack-2 2021 33,823.90
Fire Truck 600.00
Fire Truck 1986 F800 0.00
Fire Truck 2001 3521 61,451.31
Fire Truck 2005 3522 87,292.99
Fire Truck 2021 5500 Chevy 24,964.63
Fire Truck A7 {3512) 22,500.00
Ford Expedition 2012 4,000.00
Snow Mobile Trailer 6,912.77
Support Trailer 58,973.67
Truck 0.00
Total Vahicles & Trucks - - o - 1,454,400.61
Total Fixed Assets o $1,956,764.47
Other Assets
Pension Fund 411,283.43
Prepaid Utilities 27,905.36
" Total Other Assets - o N $439,188.79
TOTAL ASSETS $3,010,883.86

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2023 10:28 AM GMT-06:00 3/4



Hanover Fire Protection District

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2023

TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable 0.00
T untsPa&ahIa e - — . _ 3
Credit Cards
Capital One Credit Card 69,995.11
Visa-UMB-9581 0.00
Total Credit Cards ' $69,995.11
Other Current Liabilities
Colorado Department of Revenue Payable 0.00
Direct Deposit Liabilities 0.00
Direct Deposit Payable 0.00
Notes Payable 0.00
Payroll Liabilities 17,771.50
941- Social & Medicare -0.99
CO Income Tax -1,381.00
CO Paid Family and Medical Leave 300.47
CO Unemployment Tax 6,937.39
Federal Taxes {941/944) 3,636.63
Federal Unemployment (940) 120.00
Federal Withholding 0.00
FUTA- Federal Unemployment 126.00
State Wage Withholding 0.00
SUTA- State Unemployment -188.99
T i i T
Total Othar Current Liabilities $27,.321.61
s o e = AT
Long-Term Liabilities
Lease Purchase Payable -80,854.26
Loan to Sate Bank-3511 Fire Tru 26,000.00
Total Long-Term Liakilities $-54,854.26
* Total Liabillfies $42,461.86
Equity
Opening Balance Equity 840,943.83
Retained Earnings 2,200,270.02
Net Income -72,791.85
Total Equty o S - $2,968,422 00
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $3,010,883.86

%

Accrual Basis Monday, April 10, 2023 10:28 AM GMT-06:00 414



Hanover Fire Protection District
13325 Old Pueblo Road
Fountain, CO 80817
(719) 382-1900

Building plan reviews / Inspections (No Updates)

Equipment Testing (No Updates)

Personal
1. We had our new Junior firefighter start to attend training and meetings
from Hanover School. His name is Tanner and is 15 years old.

Grants (NTR)

1. ESA Grant (NTR)
a. This grant is 100% funded. We should hear something in the next
few months about this grant. The number of AED may be reduced
due to the amount of request.

2. Fire fighter disease and safety grant
a. This grant was for Rit packs 1 per engine. We should receive

something back on this grant in about 3-4 months. This grant was
also 100% funded.

Training

1. Annual wildland Pac test
a. This past month we have held several annual pac tests.

Radios (NTR)

Old Items (Still Working)

1. IS0 inspection (No Updates)

a. The Deputy Chief has completed the 1SO packet and sent it back to
the POC for 1SO. He has been working this last month on
answering any questions that they have and providing them with
supporting documents. Once all the prework is completed and they
are satisfied they will be out to complete there in person




Hanover Fire Protection District
13325 Old Pueblo Road
Fountain, CO 80817
(719) 382-1900

inspection. | know that Kevin has spent the last 2-3 months on this
process and has really put in the extra time to get this right. With
all his work and detailed documentation, we may even see a better
score than our current ISO 5 rating.

2. Website Update
a. We are stilt working to add in some historical board meetings and
packets along with treasure reports. Will provide updates as those
are completed.

New items

1. SDA training
a. Board and Chiefs conference / training
i. SDA Annual Conference 12-14 September

b. Ibelieve that we need to attend this conference to see what new
regulations and laws that are going into effect on the 1%t of the year
S0 we can be better prepared.

2. State Chiefs
a. The State chiefs has a in person meeting scheduled on the 15 Feb
2023 in Golden was postponed until 8 March 7, 2023
www.cofirechiefs.org/critical-issues-briefings

3. State legislative bill tracker
a. Here are the current bills that could have an impact

on the district.

b. HB23-1270 Creation of Urgent Incident Fund (3-30-2023)

i. The bill creates the urgent incident response fund (fund). Money in the
fund is continuously appropriated to the division of homeland security
and emergency management in the department of public safety to
reimburse state agencies and local governments for the costs of
responding to urgent incidents that do not rise to the level of disasters or
emergencies,

c. SB23-017 Additional Uses Paid Sick Leave (1-10-2023)




Hanover Fire Protection District
13325 Old Pueblo Road
Fountain, CO 80817
(719) 382-1900

i. The bill allows an employee to use accrued paid sick leave when the
employee needs to: | Care for a family member whose school or place of
care has been closed due to inclement weather, loss of power, loss of
heating, loss of water, or other unexpected occurrence or event that
results in the closure of the family member's school or place of care; or
Grieve, attend funeral services or a memorial, or deal with financial and
legal matters that arise after the death of a family member

d. SB23-111 Public Employees’ Workplace Protection

i. The "National Labor Relations Act" does not apply to federal, state, or
local governments and the "Colorado Labor Peace Act" excludes
governmental entities, with an exception for mass transportation systems,
leaving public employees without the protection afforded by these labor
laws. The bill grants certain public employees, including individuals
employed by counties, municipalities, fire authorities, school districts,
public colleges and universities, library districts, special districts, public
defender's offices, the university of Colorado hospital authority, the
Denver health and hospital authority, the general assembly, and a board
of cooperative services, the right to:

1. Discuss or express views regarding public employee
representation or workplace issues.

2. Engage in protected, concerted activity for the purpose of mutual
aid or protection.

3. Fully participate in the political process while off duty and not in
uniform, including speaking with members of the public
employer's governing body on terms and conditions of
employment and any matter of public concern and engaging in
other political activities in the same manner as other citizens of
Colorado without discrimination, intimidation, or retaliation; and

4. Organize, form, join, or assist an employee organization or refrain
from organizing, forming, joining, or assisting an employee
organization.



Hanover Fire Protection District
13325 Old Pueblo Road
Fountain, CO 80817
(719) 382-1900

ii. The bill also prohibits certain public employers from discriminating
against, coercing, intimidating, interfering with, or imposing reprisals
against a public employee for engaging in any of the rights granted.

ili. The Colorado department of labor and employment (department) is
charged with enforcing any alleged violation of these rights and is
granted rule-making authority. A party may appeal the department's final
decision to the Colorado court of appeals. The bill requires the court of
appeals to give deference to the department.

e. SB23-213 Land Use (3-22-2023)

i. The land use SB23-213 bill was last minute addition. Currently the
bill only affects tier 1 cities. 1000 or more citizens and has a
metapopulation panning organization. There are a lot of parts to
this bill and timeline benchmarks. | could see that counties with tier
1 cites could be added into this bill and if that happens, we could
see a possible surge In additional accessory dwelling units (ADU)

Questions




RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 1
BUILDING AND STRUCTURE RECORDS

General Description: Records generally relating fo structures and buildings. The specified retention period
applies to the information contained within the record, regardless of the physical format of the record
{paper, microfilm, computer disk or fape, optical disk, etc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

1.10 Address History Files

Records maintained as address history files {o provide a chronological record and running history
of building-related activities for each address located within the special district. These files may
include records listed elsewhere in the retention schedules, such as building and demolition
permits, gas connection records, certificates of occupancy, building inspection reports, unsafe
building actions, variances granted, zoning certificates and ufility taps.

Retention: Permanent files, except follow retention schedules for purging of nonpermanent
records

1.40 Building and Other Uniform Codes
See Schedule 7 Code Book Records.
1.50 Fire Code Board Case Files

Records pertaining to cases or appeals heard by bodies such as the Fire Code Board of Appeals
or similar boards charged with interpreting code provisions relating to issues such as alternate
building materials or methods of construction, and with review and decision-making authority
regarding building, construction or similar matters.

Retention: 20 years
1.60 Certificates of Occupancy

Documents issued to the special district by the county or municipality after the permitted
construction activity is completed as evidence that all minimum requirements have been met
before the building or structure can be occupied and used.

Retention: Permanent
1.70 Communication Tower Structures

See Schedule 12 Permif Records.



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

1.90 Contractor's Licenses

See Schedule 12 Licensing Records.
1.140 Housing Rehabilitation Projects

See Schedule 5 Grant Records and Schedule 7 Project Files.
1.150 Inspection Records

Fire Code Inspection Reports

Records of final on-site inspections done by the special district or by its agents to determine the
compliance of building construction, electrical, plumbing, mechanical and other systems with
requirements of the special district, uniform codes and all other adopted fire code standards
adopted by the special district.

Retention: Permanent

Inspection Agencies

See Schedule 7 for applicable records, such as Agresments and Conftracts.
1.160 Landmark and Historic Designations

Records relating to local, state or federal historic designations for buildings, structures or districts
within the special district and preservation of historic structures.

Retention: Permanent
1.170 Mobile Home Standards
See Schedule 7 Regulations and Standards.
1.180 Policies and Procedures
See Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Documentation.
1.200 Regulations — Building
See Schedule 7 Regulations and Standards.
1.210 Reports — Building Activity

Summary housing reports and statistical compilations tracking building activity on a monthly or
annual basis, including reports compiled for the U.S. Census Bureau, used to monitor growth and
track building trends. See also Schedule 1 Inspection Records; Schedule 7 Reports; and
Schedule 11 Census and Populfation Records.



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Annual Reports and Compilations
Retention: Permanent
Monthly Reports
Retention: 1 year + current
1.230 Standards — Building

See Schedule 7 Regulations and Standards.






RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 2

Reserved






RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADOQO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 3

ELECTION RECORDS?

General Description: Records documenting the administration of special district elections conducted by
the district and in coordination with the county. The specified refention periods apply to the information
contained within the record, regardiess of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer
disk or tape, optical disk, etc.).

Contested Elections: Destruction of nonpermanent election records is authorized at the end of the
specified minimum retention period provided there was no contested election. However, if the election is
contested, all election records must be retained for 25 months or until the contest has been finalty
resolved and all rights to appeal have expired, whichever is longer.

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

3.10 Mail-in (formerly Absentee) Voter Records

Records documenting the casting of and accounting for mail-in ballots, including mail-in voter
affidavits and oaths, applications for mail-in ballots, lists prepared by the designated election
official of electors receiving mail-in ballots, mail-in ballot return envelopes and receipts of election
judges for mail-in ballots and ballots cast by absentee voters. See also Schedule 3 Ballots.

Retention: 25 months after election

3.20 Ballot Issue Comments

Written comments received from persons eligible to vote in the special district election that are to
be summarized in the ballot issue notice mailed to registered electors [CRS 1-7-901].

Retention: 256 months after election

3.30 Ballots

The official list showing all candidates, ballot issues and ballot questions upon which an eligible
elector is entitled to vote at an election, including ballots that are unused, voted, mail-in,
defective, spoiled, replacement, or mailed and returned by post office as undeliverable to inactive
voters in mail ballot elections.

Retention: 25 months after election or until time has expired for which the ballots would be
needed in any contested proceedings, except retain one copy of ballot permanently in master
election file.

1 CRS 1-7-802 requires the designated election official to preserve all election records and forms for at
least twenty-five months after the election. Typically, a permanent file is retained by the designated
election official for the preservation of election materials to be retained permanently

5



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

3.40 Campaign Reports And Statements

Affidavits, reports and statements regarding campaign committees, contributions and
expenditures, required by the provisions of Colorado law.

Candidate Affidavits

Affidavits required by CRS 1-45-110 to be filed by candidates for special district office, certifying
that the candidate is familiar with the Fair Campaign Practices Act.

Candidate Affidavits — Elected Candidates

Retention: 1 year after elected candidate leaves office [CRS 1-45-11 2(1}(b)]
Candidate Affidavits — Unsuccessful Candidates

Retention: 1 year from date of filing of affidavit [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b)]
Committee Statements of Organization

Statements made regarding the registration of various types of election committees, required by
CRS 1-45-108.

Candidate Committee Statements — Elected Candidates

Retention: 1 year after elected candidate leaves office [CRS 1-45-112(b)]
Candidate Committee Statements — Unsuccessful Candidates
Retention: 1 year from filing of statement [CRS 1-45-112{1)(b)]

Issue Committee Statements

Retention: 1 year from date of filing of statement [CRS 1-45-11 2(1)(b)]
Contribution and Expenditure Reports

Reports of contributions and expenditures required under the provisions of CRS Title 1, Article 45
for elected and defeated candidates, independent expenditures, and issues committees.

Candidate (Elected) Committee Reports
Reports of candidates and organized candidate committees required by CRS 1-45-108.
Retention: 1 year after elected candidate leaves office [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b)]

Candidate (Unsuccessful) Committee Reports



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Reports of candidates and organized candidate committees required by CRS 1-45-108.
Retention: 1 year from date of filing of report [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b)]
Issue Committee Reporis

Reports of committees organized in support of or in opposition to election issues, required by
CRS 1-45-108.

Retention: 1 year from date of filing of report [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b}]
3.50 Certifications of Election
Certificates of Votes Cast
Certificates of election judges showing the votes cast for candidate by office.
Retention: 25 months after election
Certified Statement and Determination of Persons Elected
Certification of the special district election results prepared by the designated election official.
Retention: Permanent
3.55 Coordinated Election Records

Records generated with regard to the conduct and results of coordinated elections held in
conjunction with the County. Note: Most records pertaining to coordinated elections are the
responsibility of the County Clerk. Some coordinated election records are retained by the
Designated Election Official as the official record of the district's portion of the election.

Abstracts of Votes Cast— County Issued

County’s abstract of votes cast (certification of election results) relating to special district issues
that were on the coordinated election ballot.

Retention: Permanent
Ballot Certifications

Designated election official's official certification to the county clerk of the ballot language for any
measures appearing on the special district's portion of coordinated election balflot.

Retention: Permanent

Ballot Review Drafts



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Drafts of ballot language and proposed ballot layout exchanged with special district.
Retention: 25 months after election
3.60 Election Judges Records
Records pertaining to the election service of election judges.
Acceptances to Serve

Written acceptance of commitment to serve as election judge, alternate judge, or designated
election official.

Retention: 25 months after election

Expense Statements

Statement of expenses of election judges and supporting documentation such as receipts.
Retention: Until audited

Instructions

Written instructions issued to election judges regarding conduct of election.

Retention: 25 months + current

Lists of Election Judges

Listings prepared by the designated election official of election judges and alternates names
addresses and telephone numbers.

Retention: 25 months, excepf retain one copy of list for use at next election
Oaths — Election Judges
See Schedule 3 Oaths and Affidavits.

3.65 Mail Ballot Election Records

Records relating to mail ballot elections conducted by the special district pursuant to State law,
including affidavits of voters requesting replacement ballots, ballots (cast, duplicated, rejected,
undeliverable, unused), paper or electronic poll books, mail ballot return verification envelopes,
mail ballot processing logs, electronic or hard copy voter registration lists and property owner
lists, written TABOR comments, and other mail ballot administrative records.

Retention: 25 months after election



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Unused Replacement Ballots

Ballots that were available but were not used for voters who did not receive a mail bailot for some
reason, who had moved without changing voter registration address, efc.

Retention: After challenge period for the election has passed [CRS 1-7-802]
3.70 Maps — Election’

Maps showing adistrict designations and boundaries for special district elections. See also
Schedule 7 Maps and Drawings.

Retention: Permanent
3.80 Nomination Records

Records relating to the submission of self nomination and acceptance forms or letters for special
district office.[CRS31-1-804.3]

Protest to Self nomination and acceptance form or letter
Retention: 25 months after election

Self Nomination and Acceptance Form or Letter

Elected Candidates

Refention: 25 months after election, except retain for 4 years if term of office of elected official is 4
years

Unsuccessful Candidates

Retention: 25 months after election

Withdrawal from Nomination

Retention: 25 months after election
3.90 Notices of Election

Copies of notices required to be posted, published or mailed regarding the special district
election, including the "ballot issue notice" required by Section 20(3)(b}) of Article X of the State
Constitution containing summaries of comrments on ballot issues.

Retention: 25 months after election, except retain one copy permanently in master election file

2 Election maps have historical value for election analysis, as evidence of evolution and growth of the
district and as documentation of District boundary changes.

9



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

3.100 Oaths and AHidavits

Sworn statements made by electors or election officials, including oaths or affidavits made by
judges, by electors requesting mail-in ballots, at the time of a challenge of an elector's right to
vote, oaths of watchers and substitute watchers and similar documents,

Retention: 25 months after election or until time has expired for which election documeniation
would be needed in any contested proceedings

3.110 Petitions — Election
Inclusion/Exclusion Election Petitions

Petitions for the conduct of an election to determine whether property should be included into or
excluded from the district [CRS 32-1-401 and 32-1-501 1l

Retention: Permanent

Certifications of Petitions

Certifications regarding the sufficiency or insufficiency of election petitions.
Retention: Permanent

Insufficient Petitions

These are petitions that have been determined by the special district, or the courts, as being not
complete in meeting the district and/or statutory requirements for submitting petitions.

Retention: 2 years after all appeals have been closed except retain one copy of representative
pages permanently for historical purposes.

Protest Records — Petitions

Records relating to protests submitted to the district, protest process and hearings and findings of
the district regarding the protest.

Retention: Follow retention period for the specific type of petition
Recall Petitions

Petitions submitted in accordance with legal requirements by citizens demanding the removal of
an elected district official from office. [CRS32-1-908]

Retention: 3 years after submission, except retain one copy of representative pages for historical
purposes in permanent election file, and except that unsuccessful petitions may be returned to
petition representatives after the special district certification that the petition is insufficient.

10



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

3.120 Polling Records

Poll Books

A list kept by election judges of eligible electors to whom ballots are delivered or who are
permitted to enter a voting machine for the purpose of casting their votes at an election.

Retention: 25 months + current
Registered Voler Lists

Lists of registered electors for the election provided to election judges for use in verifying voter
registrations at polling places.

Retention: 25 months after election
Poll Site Records
Documentation of selection of site and arrangements for use as a polling place.

Retention: 25 months after election, except retain contact information and summary of problems
until after the next election

Property Owners Lists

Lists of owners of property in the district provide to election judges for use in verifying elector
eligibility.

Retention: 25 months after election
Voter Self-affidavit Signature Forms
Forms signed by voters at the polls to establish identity and request a ballot.
Retention: 25 months after election
3.130 Receipts and Accoqnting Forms
Receipts for Transfer of Election Materials

Documentation for the receipt or transfer of election-related materials between the designated
election official and election judges, including receipts for mail-in ballots, bailot boxes, registration
book, etc.

Retention:25 months after election

Statement of Judges

11



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Statement of election judges accounting for ballots voted, spoiled, delivered to voters, unused
and returned to the designated election official.

Retention: 25 months after election
3.135 Surveillance Recordings ~ Election Areas

Video or audio recordings of election operations in secured areas, such as ballot receipt,
tabulation, handling and processing areas.

Retention: 25 months after election
3.140 Tabulation Records
Abstract of Election
Summary of election results posted in a conspicuous location by the judges of etection,
Retention: 25 months after election
Tally Lists

Worksheets included in poll books or prepared by the designated election official for use of the
judges of election to keep track of votes cast at the time ballots are opened and read.

Retention: 25 months after election
Tabulation Test Results

Records of testing of the tabulation equipment prior to and/or after the machine tabulation of
ballots.

Retention: 25 meonths after election or until such time has expired for which the ballots would be
needed in any contested proceedings

12



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Schedule NO. 3 A

ELECTION RECORDS
SPECIAL DISTRICT ELECTIONS NOT COORDINATED BY

THE COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER

General Description: Records documenting the administration of nonpartisan special district elections
held after February 18, 2014 and not coordinated by the County Clerk and Recorder. This
retention schedule pertains to the retention of all special district election records, unless the district
has adopted a resolution that it wili utilize all or part of the requirements and procedures of the
Uniform Election Code of 1992. The specified retention periods apply to the information contained
within the record, regardiess of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, compufer disk or
tape, optical disk, efc.).

Contested Elections: Destruction of nonpermanent election records is authorized at the end of the
specified minimum retention period provided there was no contested election. However, if the election is
contested, all election records must be retained for the specified retention period, or until the contest has
been finally resclved and all rights to appeal have expired, whichever is longer.

jes: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

No record shall be destroyed under this schedule authority as long as it pertains to any pending
Legal case, claim, action, or audit.

3.10 Absentee-Voter Records

Records documenting the casting of and accounting for absentee ballots; inciuding absentee
voter affidavits and oaths, applications for absentee ballots, lists prepared by the designated
election official of electors receiving absentee ballots {except for lists of permanent
absentee voters), absentee ballot return envelopes and receipts of election judges for
absentee ballots.. [CRS 1-13.5-1001 — 1-13.5-1011] Does not include ballots (voted or non-
voted). See 3.30 Ballots.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polis close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]
3.20 Ballot Issue Comments

Written comments received from persons eligible to vote in the special district election that are to
be summarized in the ballot issue notice mailed to registered electors [CRS 1-7-901].

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

3.30 Ballots

Voted Ballots



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

The official ballots showing all candidates, ballot issues and ballot questions upon which an
eligible elector is entitled to vote at an election-

Retention: 25 months after the date the polls ciose or until time has expired for which the bailots
would be needed in any contested proceedings, except retain one copy of ballot permanently in
master election file. [CRS 1-13.5-616(1)]

Non-Voted Ballots

The official ballots showing all candidates, ballot issues and ballot questions upon which an
eligible elector is entitled to vote at an slection but that are not voted or cast in the election
including ballots that are unused, defective, spoiled, replacement, or mailed and returned by post
office as undeliverable to inactive voters in mail ballot elections.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close or until ime has expired for which the
ballots would be needed in any contested proceedings. [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

3.40 Campaign Reports and Statements

Affidavits, reports and statements regarding campaign committees, contributions and
expenditures, required by the provisions of Colorado law.

Candidate Affidavits

Affidavits required by CRS 1-45-110 to be filed by candidates for special disfrict office, certifying
that the candidate is familiar with the Fair Campaign Practices Act.

Candidate Affidavits — Elected Candidates

Retention: 1 year after elected candidate leaves office [CRS 1-45-112(1){b)]

Candidate Affidavits — Unsuccessful Candidates

Retention: 1 year from date of filing of affidavit [CRS 1-45-1 12(1)(b)]
Committee Statements of Organization

Statements made regarding the registration of various types of election committees, required by
[CRS 1-45-108].

Candidate Committee Statements — Efected Candidates

Retention: 1 year after elected candidate leaves office [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b)]

Candidate Committee Statements — Unsuccessful Candidates

Retention: 1 year from filing of statement [CRS 1-45-1 1201k}



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Issue Committee Statemenis
Retention: 1 year from date of filing of statement [CRS 1-45-112(1){(b}]
Contribution and Expenditure Reports

Reports of contributions and expenditures required under the provisions of CRS Title 1, Article
45 for elected and defeated candidates, independent expenditures, and issues commitiees.

Candidate (Elected) Committee Reports

Reports of candidates and organized candidate committees required by CRS 1-45-108.
Retention: 1 year after elected candidate leaves office [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b)]
Candidate (Unsuccessful) Committee Reports

Reports of candidates and organized candidate committees required by CRS 1-45-108.
Retention: 1 year from the date of filing of report [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b}]

Issue Committee Reports

Reports of committees organized in support of or in opposition fo election issues, required
by CRS 1-45-108.

Retention: 1 year from date of filing of report [CRS 1-45-112(1)(b)]
3.50 Certifications of Election
Certificates of Votes Cast

Certificates of election judges showing the votes cast for candidate by office.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

Cerfified Statement and Determination of Persons Elected

Certification of the special district election results prepared by the designated election official.

Transfer a copy of the certificate to the Division of Local Government in the Department of
Local Affairs. [CRS 1-13.5-1305]

Retention: Permanent

3.55 Coordinaied Election Records

Records generated with regard to the conduct and results of coordinated elections held in
conjunction with the County. Note: Most records pertaining to coordinated elections are the



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

responsibility of the ounty Clerk. Some oordinated election records are retained by the
Designated Election Official as the official record of the district's portion of the election

Abstracts of Votes Cast— County Issued

County's abstract of votes cast (certification of election results) relating to special district issues
that were on the coordinated election ballot.

Retention: Permanent

Ballot Certifications

Designated election official's official certification to the county clerk of the ballot language for any
measures appearing on the special district's portion of coordinated election ballot.

Retention: Permanent
Ballot Review Drafts
Drafts of ballot language and proposed ballot layout exchanged with special district.

Retention: & months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5- 616(2)]

3.60 Election Judges Records
Records pertaining to the election service of election judges.
Acceptances to Serve

Written acceptance of commitment to serve as election judge, alternate judge, or designated
election official.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

Expense Statements

Statement of expenses of election judges and supporting documentation such as receipts.
Retention: Until audited

Instructions

Written instructions issued to election judges regarding conduct of election.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

Lists of Election Judges



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Listings prepared by the designated election official of election judges and alternates names,
addresses and telephone numbers.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]
Database: 6 months following the date the polls close or until superseded, whichever is longer

Oaths — Election Judges
See Schedule 3.100 Oaths and Affidavits.
3.65 Mail Ballot Election Records

Records relating to mail ballot elections conducted by the special district pursuant to State law,
including affidavits of voters requesting replacement balltots, paper or electronic poll books, mail
ballot return verification envelopes, mail ballot processing logs, electronic or hard copy voier
registration lists and property owner lists, written TABOR comments, and other mail ballot
administrative records. Does not include mail ballots (voted or non-voted). See Schedule
3.30, Baliots.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

3.70 Maps — Election’

Maps showing a district designations and boundaries for special district elections. See also
Schedule 7 Maps and Drawings.

Retention: Permanent

3.80 Nomination Records

Records relating to the submission of self-nomination and acceptance forms or letters for special
district office.

Protest to Self-Nomination and Acceptance Form or Letter
Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5- 616(2)]

Self-Nomination and Acceptance Form or Letter

Elected Candidates

Retention: Duration of term of office

! Election maps have historical value for election analysis, as evidence of evolution and growth of the
district and as documentation of District boundary changes.



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL
COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Unsuccessful Candidates
Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5- 616(2)]

Withdrawal from Nomination

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls dose [CRS 1-13.5-61 6(2)]

3.90 Notices of election

Copies of notices required to be posted, published or mailed regarding the special district
election, including the "ballot issue notice" required by Section 20(3) (b) of Article X of the State
Constitution containing summaries of comments on ballot issues.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)], except retain
one copy permanently in master election fiile.

3.100 Oaths and Affidavits

Sworn statements made by electors or election officials, including oaths or affidavits made by
judges, by electors requesting absentee ballots, at the time of a challenge of an elector's
right to vote, oaths of watchers and substitute watchers and similar documents. Does not

include voter self-affidavit, oath and signature forms. See Section 3.120 Polling

Records

Retention: Retention: & months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]
or until time has expired for which election documentation would be needed in any contested
proceedings

3.110 Petitions — Election

Inclusion/Exclusion Election Petitions

Petitions for the conduct of an election to determine whether property should be included info or
excluded from the district [CRS 32-1-401 and 32-1-501].

Retention: Permanent

Certifications of Petitions

Certifications regarding the sufficiency or insufficiency of election petitions.
Retention: Permanent

Insufficient Petitions

These are petitions that have been determined by the special district, or the courts, as being not

6



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

complete in meeting the district and/or statutory requirements for submitting petitions.

Retention: 2 years after all appeals have been closed except retain one copy of representative
pages permanently for historical purposes.

Protest Records — Petitions

Records relating to protests submitted to the district, protest process and hearings and findings
of the district regarding the protest.

Retention: Follow retention period for the specific type of petition
Recall Petitions

Petitions submitted in accordance with legal requirements by citizens demanding the removal of
an elected disfrict official from office. [CRS32-1-906]

Retention: 3 years after submission, except refain one copy of representative pages for historical
purposes in permanent election file and except that unsuccessful petitions may be returned to
petition representatives after certification from the special district that the petition is
insufficient.

3.120 Polling Records

Poll Books

A list kept by election judges of eligible electors to whom ballots are delivered or who are
permitted to enter a voting machine for the purpose of casting their votes at an election.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

Registered Voter Lists

Lists of registered electors for the election provided to election judges for use in verifying voter
registrations at polling places.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

Poll Site Records
Documentation of selection of site and arrangements for use as a polling place._

Retention: 6 months following the date the polis close [CRS 1-13.5- 616(2)], except
retain contact information and summary of problems  until after the next election

Property Owners Lists



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Lists of owners of property in the district provide to election judges for use in verifying elector
eligibility.

Retention: & months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-61 6(2)]
Voter Self-affidavit and Oath Signature Forms

Forms and oaths signed by voters at the polls to establish identity and request a ballot.

Retention: 45 days following the election, if no challenges are made, or until resolution of
any challenges whichever is longer [CRS 1-13.5-605(6)].

3.130 Receipts and Accounting Forms
Receipts for Transfer of Election Materials

Documentation for the receipt or transfer of election-related materials between the designated
election official and election judges, including receipts for mail-in ballots, ballot boxes,
registration books, etc.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

Statement of Judges

Statement of election judges accounting for ballots voted, spoiled, delivered to voters, unused
and returned to the designated election official.

Refention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

3.135 Surveillance Recordings — Election Areas

Video or audio recordings of election operations in secured areas, such as ballot receipt, tabulation, handling
and processing areas.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]
3.140 Tabulation Records

Abstract of Election

Summary of election results posted in a conspicuous location by the judges of election.
Retention: 8 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-61 8(2)]

Tally Lists
Worksheets included in poll books or prepared by the designated election official for use of the

8



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

judges of election fo keep track of votes cast at the time ballots are opened and read.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close [CRS 1-13.5-616(2)]

Tabulation Test Results

Records of testing of the tabulation equipment prior to and/or after the machine tabulation of
ballots.

Retention: 6 months following the date the polls close or until such fime has expired for
which the ballots would be needed in any contested proceedings. [CRS 1-13.5- 616(2)]






RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 4

Reserved

13






RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 5

FINANCIAL RECORDS

General Description: Records documenting and ensuring accountability for the receipt and expenditure of
public funds. The specified retention period applies to the information contained within the record,
regardiess of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape, opfical disk, etc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Dupliicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

5.10 Accounts Payable Records

Records that serve as the basis for payment of bills by the special district, including copies of bills
paid, copies of checks, invoices, purchase orders and receiving reports, and correspondence with
vendors.

Accounts Payable Records in General
Reiention: 6 years + current

Balance Sheets

Retention: Unfil updated

Bills Paid

Retention: 6 years + current

Invoices and Statements

Retention: 6 years + current

Publication of Bills Paid

See Schedule 7 Affidavits of Publication.
Reports of Bills Allowed

Listings of bills presented to the govemning body or other authority for payment authorization.
Retention: 6 years + current

Charge Slips and Credit Card Statements

Documentation of charges for items such as printing and meals or credit card transactions.

14



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 2 years + current

Credit Card Records

Records of credit cards issued to the special district for district use.
Retention: 1 year + current after cancellation

Expense Records

Records maintained to document travel, mileage, claims for reimbursement and other expenses
of district officials while on district business, including requests, authorizations, reimbursements
and other similar transactions.

Retention: 2 years, provided audit has been completed
Form 1099

Sent to vendors such as contractors when the vendor's charges for services exceed $600 for the
year.

Retention: 4 years

Petty Cash Records

Records of petty cash fund account and requests for petty cash for various purposes.
Retention: 1 year + current

Purchasing Records

See Schedule 5 Purchasing Records.

Vendor Files

Files maintained as a unit to track accounts payable activity for specific vendors, including
information such as Federal Taxpayer |dentification Number, name and address,
correspondence, copies of checks, etc.

Retention: 6 years + current
W-9 Forms

Forms used to record information, including taxpayer identification number, for vendors,
contractors, and service providers paid more than $600 per year.

Retention: 3 years + current

15



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

5.20 Accounts Receivable Records

Records that serve as the basis for collection of amounts owed by vendors, organizations and

citizens having accounts with the special district, and documentation of billing and collection of
monies.

Accounts Receivable Records in General
Retention: 2 years + current

Balance Sheets

Retention: Until updated

Cash Books, Receipts and Reports

Cash book showing receipts, cash account pre-edit listing, daily cash reports and other
documentation of receipt of monies for fees, parking tickets, rentals, registrations, etc.

Retention: 2 years + current

Cash Register Validation Tape

Retention: 1 year + current

Fee Receipts

See Cash Books, Receipts and Reports above.

Invoices and Statements Issued by the Special District

Billings by the district to outside companies or institutions for damages, supplies, services or
Tepairs, etc.

Retention: 6 years + current

Utility Billing Records

See Schedule 5 Utility Billing.
5.30 Agreements And Contracts - Financial

See Schedule 7 Agreements and Contracts.
5.40 Audit Records

Records documenting external audits of the financial position of the district.

16



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Agreements - Audit Services
See Schedule 7 Agreements and Contracts.
Audit Reports

Annual or special reports prepared by external auditors examining and verifying the special
district's financial activities or the financial activities of a fund, department or other component of
the district government.

Retention: Permanent
Audit Work Papers

Documentation consisting of routine correspondence with auditors and copies of district records
compiled for use by auditors in performing an audit.

Retention: 2 years + current after completion of audit
5.50 Bank Records

Records documenting the current status and transaction activity of special district funds held at
banks.

Bank Records - In General

Retention: 2 years + current

Bank Statements

Monthly statements showing the amount of money on deposit to the credit of the district,
Retention: 6 years + current

Check Records

Cancelled Checks

Retention: 6 years + current

Duplicate Copies of Checks

Carbon copies or photocopies of checks issued and maintained solely as a quick reference
source.

Retention: 1 year + current
Register — Check

17



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Chronological listing of check entries.
Retention: 6 years + current

Stubs - Check

Retention: 1 year + current

Voided Checks

Retention: 1 year + current
Certificates of Deposit

See Schedule 5 Investment Records.
Deposit Pass Books

Records of district savings account deposits, withdrawals and balances.
Retention: 6 years + current

Deposit Slips

Bank cashiers’ slips showing amount and date of deposit of monies into district accounts.
Retention: 1 year + current

Money Market Certificates

See Schedule 5 Investment Records.
Reconciliations

Retention: 6 years + current

Savings Bond Records

See Schedule 5 Investment Records.
Trial Balances

Retention: 2 years + current

5.55 Bankruptcy And Foreclosure Records

18



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records documenting bankruptcies and foreclosures in which the special district has some kind
of a financial interest due to liens, unpaid assessments, unpaid fees or bills, stc.

Retention: 6 years + current after the district recovers money owed or has no further interest in
the proceeding.

5.60 Bids

See Schedule 5 Purchasing Records.
5.70 Billing Records

See Schedule 5 Accounts Receivable Records and Utility Billing.
5.80 Bond Issue Records

Bond Issue Files

Records that document the authorization to finance improvements through bonded indebtedness
and implementation of bond issues, including bond anticipation hotes, general obligation bonds,
revenue and refunding bonds, water bonds and special improvement bonds: usually include
correspondence and general documentation, authorizations supporting financial arrangements,
bond ratings, contracts or sales agreements, and sample copies or specimens of bonds sold as
evidence of district indebtedness.

Retention: 2 years after final payment
Bond Issue Proceedings Books

Certified record of proceedings relating to a bond issue, containing specimen (usually original)
documents related to the approval process and issuance of bonds typicalty compiled in book form
for presentation to the special district by the bond agent or bond counsel.

Retention: Permanent
Bonds, Notes and Coupons Paid

Canceled or redeemed bonds and coupons received from paying agents throughout the lifetime
of the bond issue; cancelled upon receipt.

Retention: 1 year after maturity
Bond Registers and Ledgers

Used to document the redemption of coupons for issued bonds. Bond registration and redemption
transactions may be handled by a bond registration or paying agent for some districts.

Retention: Permanent

19



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

5.90 Bonds - Public Officials
See Schedule 15 Bonds.
5.100 Budget Records
Budget — Final Adopted

Final financial plan for the budget period established by the special district as approved by the
governing body for the allocation and budgsting of all expenditures of the district.

Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Until superseded
Budget ~ Preliminary

Draft version of the budget presented for public inspection and review prior to consideration of the
budget by the governing body.

Retention: 1 year afier adoption of final budget
Duplicate Copies: Until final budget is adopted
Budget Reports

Monthly or Quarterly Reports

Periodic reports regarding the status of receipts and disbursements in comparison to the
adopted budget.

Retention: 2 years + current
Year-End Reporis
Summary annual budget reports compiled at year-end.
Retention: 6 years + current
Budget Work Papers

Papers used to assist in the preparation and review and decision-making processes for district
budget requests, including reports, budget instructions, worksheets, spending plans, budget
proposals, financial forecasting reports and similar records.

Retention: 1 year + current
5.120 County Revenue Programs

20



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

See Schedule 5 Government Revenue Programs.

5.130 Expense Records

See Schedule 5 Accounts Payable Records.

5.140 Federal Revenue Programs

See Schedule 5 Government Revenue Programs.

5.150 Fee and Rate Schedules and Supporting Documentation

Fee and rate schedules and supporting documentation justifying the determination of special
district fees and rates; i.e., calculations, methodology for establishing the fee or rate, comparisons
with other districts, projections of revenue based on recommended fees or rates, etc. See also
5.20, Accounts Receivable Records for fee collection records.

Fee and Rate Schedules and Supporting Documentation (Except for Utility Rates)
Retention: Retain current and previous schedules and associated supporting documentation
Utility Rate Schedules and Supporting Documentation

See 5.360.H, Rate Schedules and Supporting Documentation — Utility Billing.

5.160 Financial Guarantees

Records relating to the acquisition and release of various forms of financial guarantee -- including
escrow accounts, letters of credit, liens, promissory notes — required by the district from other
parties to ensure performance, payments or the completion of certain specified actions, such as
the completion of projects, required improvements or the payment of delinguent bills or
assessments.

Retention: 1 year after expiration, completion of guaranteed project (if applicable} or release of
the guarantee by the special district

5.170 Financial Reports

See Schedule 5 Reports — Financial,

5.180 Fixed Asset Records

Inventories and listings kept to track and control the fixed assets of the district, including
buildings, real estate, office equipment, tools, machinery and other equipment.

Acquisitions

See Schedule 16 Acquisition Records.

21



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Annual Reporis

Worksheets compiled for annual reports listing totals of all fixed assets, purchases and
disposition of assets.

Retention: Until superseded

Auction Records

Summary reports and other records of district property sold at public auction.
Retention: 2 years + current

Depreciation Detail

Retention: 3 years + current

Disposition Records

Records of disposal of district property (nonreal estate) and unclaimed, abandoned or confiscaied
property such as bicycles and vehicles by competitive bidding or destruction, including date,
department name, description of item, value, disposition, method and reason for disposition,
condition, value and approvals.

Retention: 3 years + current after disposition of property

Fixed Asset Files

Listings of all special district property (buildings and real estate), vehicles, equipment and
furniture. includes description, cost, date purchased, location, name of vendor and depreciation.

Retentton: 10 years
Inventories — Fixed Assets

Listings of expendable and nonexpendable property of the district, including buildings, real estate,
vehicles, furniture, equipment, supplies and other items owned or administered by the special
district.

Retention: Until revised
Surplus Property Records

Documentation of the sale of surplus real property, including invitations, bids, acceptances, lists
of materials, evidence of sales and related correspondence. See also Schedule 16 Sale or
Transfer of Property Records.

Retention: 6 years after final payment

22



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

5.190 Franchise Records

Records pertaining to the award, operation or termination of a license or franchise granting to any
person or entity the right or privilege to erect, construct, operate or maintain upon, over or across
the streets or alleys of the district a street railway, electric light plant or system, gasworks, gas
plant or system, geothermal system, solar system, or telegraph or telephone system, or other
similar services and the collection of franchise fees or occupation taxes from franchise holders

Retention: 6 years + current after expiration of franchise and completion of all terms and
conditions of the franchise, except retain register or other listings of franchises permanently

5.200 Fund Records

See also Schedulfe 5 Accounts Receivable Records and Accounts Payable Records for fund
receipts and expenditures.

Fund Establishment

Records pertaining to the creation and purposes of special funds that are separate from the
General Fund.

Retention: Permanent
Trust Fund Records
Documentation of bequests to the special district.
Retention: 2 years after trust fund closed
5.210 Government Revenue Programs

Records pertaining to governmental programs allocating state or federal revenue sharing funds to
special district for specific purposes. See also Schedule 5 Grants.

Colorado Department of Revenue Monthly Revenue Distribution Report

Report includes account number, name, jurisdiction, filing period, source, tax, penalty, interest,
distribution and Department of Revenue interest/days.

Retention: 1 year + current after completion of audit
Revenue Sharing

Documentation and reports of the district's receipt and reallocation of federal revenue sharing
funds, including public notices, expenditure records and reports, project records, financial and
payroll records, efc. See also Schedule 7 Project Files.

Retention: 6 years + current

23



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Instructions for Completing Government Farms

Retention: Until superseded or obsolete

State Revenue Programs
Conservation Trust Fund (Lottery)
Records of allocations to and receipt by the district of lottery funds.
Retention: 6 years + current
Specific Ownership Tax
Retention: 6 years + current

5.220 Grant Records

Files pertaining to applications for grants and the administration, monitoring and status of grants
received by the district from private and governmental sources. See also 5.210, Government
Revenue Programs.

Audits — Grants
See 5.40, Audit Records.
Grants From the Special District
1. Awarded Grants and Supporting Documentafion

Documentation of awarded grants from the special district, including records of grant
application, performance under the grant, grant contracts and agreements, annual and
final performance reports.

Retention: Duration of grant + 6 years
2. Rejected Grants and Supporting Documentation

Documentation of grants by the special district that are either rejected by the grantee or
not awarded by the district.

Retention: 1 year + current after rejection or withdrawal
Grants to the Special District

1. Awarded Grants

24




RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Documentation of awarded grants that are accepted by the district, including records of
grant application, performance under the grant, grant contracts and agreements, annual
and final performance reports.

Retention: Duration of grant + & years
Rejected Grants

Documentation of grants applied for by the district and either rejected by the grantor or not
accepted by the district.

Retention: 1 year + current after rejection or withdrawal
Reports — Grant-Funded Programs

Periodic reports on the administrative and fiscal operations of federal- or state-funded programs
compiled on a monthly, quarterly or semi-annual basis.

Retention: 3 years after completion of all applicable audits
Supporting Documentation
Background supplemental information relating to grant applications and administration.
Retention: 3 years after conclusion of the grant
5.240 Insurance Records
Certificates of Insurance

Documentation provided by insurance providers as proof of insurance coverage for specific
purposes. See also 7.280.4, Project Records for Certificates of Insurance relating to Capital
Projects.

Retention: 6 years after expiration

Major Special District Projects

Retention: 10 years after substantial completion
Other Certificates of Insurance

Retention: 6 years after expiration

Claim Records

Records of claims for damages made by the special district against other parties and made by
other parties against the district.

25



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Claim Records

Statements of claims and completed claim forms. See also Schedule 13 Claims.
Retention: 6 years + current

Claim Reports

Summary reports regarding handling and disposition of claims made against the special district
and/or its insurance company by other parties.

Retention: 6 years + current

FPublic Entity Risk Management Pool Records

See Claim Records above and Insurance Policies below.
Employee Insurance Claim Records

Records pertaining to employee claims for medical, dental, long-term disability and cther
insurance coverage. See also Schedule 15 Benefits.

Retention: 3 years + current after incident is closed and all rights of appeal have expired

Insurance Policies

Documents issuad by the insurance company to outiine liability, theft, fire, accident, propertly
damage and other coverage and risk control standards for the special district under the insurance
policy.

Retention: 6 years after expiration of policy, or after all claims made under the policy are setfled,
whichever is later

Risk Management Policies
See Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Documentalion.
Unemployment Insurance
See Schedule 15 Unemployment Insurance.
Workers' Compensation
See Schedule 15 Workers' Compensation.
5.250 Inventories
See Schedule 5 Fixed Asset Records.

26



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

5.260 Investment Records
Records documenting various investments made by the special district.
Bank Statements — Investments
Retention: 2 years after investment ends
Certificates of Deposit
Retention: 6 years + current after maturity
Certificates of Deposit — Registers
Retention: 6 years after maturity
Investment Policies
See Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Documentation.
Money Market Certificates
Retention: 6 years -+ current after maturity
Reports - Investment of Funds
Retention: 10 years, provided audit has been completed
Savings Bond Records
Retention: & years + current after final payment
Stocks and Bond's
Retention: 6 years + current after disposition
Treasury Bills and Notes
Retention: 6 years + current after maturity
5.270 Ledgers And Journals
General Ledger

Year-end summary of receipts and disbursements by account and fund reflecting the general
financial condition and operation of the district. May also include documentation from subsidiary
ledgers to general ledger and accounting adjustments in the form of general enfries,

27



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent

Journal Entries

Retention: 6 years + current
Subsidiary Ledgers and Journals

Daily, monthly or quarterly transaction detail showing receipts and expenditures such as
depositor payment amount, date, payee, purpose, fund credited or debited, and check number;
provides backup documentation to General Ledger.

In General
Retention; 2 years + current
Payroll Register — Year-End
See Schedule 15 Payroll Records.
5.280 Loan Records
Records of loans entered into by the special district. See also Schedule 5 Grant Records.
Approved Loans
Retention: 6 years + current after the loan is paid
Rejected Loans
Retention: 1 year + current after rejection or withdrawal
Public Improvement | oans
Significant loans obtained to finance public improvements.

Retention: Follow retention period specified for type of project records (see Schedule 7 Project
Records) if a specific retention perlod is not specified by the loaning agency

Routine Loans
Minor loans obtained for purposes other than public improvements.
Retention: 6 years + current after payment and cancellation

5.290 Payroll Records

See Schedule 15 Payrolf Records.

28



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

5.300 Purchasing Records

Records pertaining to procurement of services or commodities, including purchase requisitions,
purchase orders, vouchers, field orders, work orders, invoices and supporting documentation for
purchases.

Purchasing Records in General

Retention: 6 years + current

Agreements — Procurement

See Schedule 7 Agreements and Contracts and Project Files.
Advertisements for Bids

See Schedule 7 Affidavits of Publication.

Auction Records

See Schedule 5 Fixed Asset Records.

Bids

Bids, quotes and proposals regarding services and commaodities received by the district in
response to solicitations.

Accepted Bids

Received from successful bidders.

Rstention: 6 years + current after acceptance of the bid
Rejected/Unsuccessful Bids

Received from unsuccessful bidders.

Retention: 2 years + current after contract is awarded or PO is issued
Unsolicited Bids

Received from bidders without solicitation from the district.

Retention: 2 years + current

Lease-Purchase Records

Records pertaining to the acquisition of property by lease-purchase transactions.

29



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Term of lease-purchase arrangement + 6 years
Procurement and Purchasing Policies

Directives, memoranda or manuals pertaining to policies established by the district for the
procurement of commodities and services. See also Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures
Documentation.

Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Until superseded
Purchasing Controf Forms

Purchase orders, purchase requisitions, field purchase orders, vouchers and other forms
documenting the procurement process.

Retention: 6 years + current
Solicitations and Specifications

Requests for proposals (RFPs), requests for quotations (RFQs), and other solicitations by the
district for competitive bids, proposals or quotes for the provision of services or commodities;
inciudes bid specifications.

Retention: 6 years + current
State Bid List

Retention: Until superseded
Vendor Lists

Listings of vendors providing goods and services to the special district, usually including names,
addresses, phone numbers, description of goods or services provided.

Retention: Until superseded or obsolete
5.310 Rate Schedules

See Schedule 5 Fee and Rate Schedules.
5.315 Rebate Program Records

Records relating to rebate programs administered by special districts; includes rebate
applications, correspondence, and other supporting documentation.

Retention: 1 year + current after the rebate is paid, provided that the records have been audited

30



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

5.320 Receipts - Fees Paid
See Schedule 5 Accounts Receivable Records.
5.330 Reports - Financial

Reports created for internal use to document the status of funds, bank accounts, investments and
other accounting of district funds, including financial projection reports.

Annual Financial Reports

Statistical reports on the financial affairs of the district or specific departments, including a
statement on the value of all district owned property and an accounting of all income and
expenditures in relationship to the final budget.

Retention: Permanent

Audit Reports

See Schedule 5 Audit Records.

Budget Reports

See Schedule 5 Budget Records.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
See 5.40.B, Audit Reports.

County Treasurer’'s Reports

Periodic reports of the County Treasurer regarding the distributions of taxes collected on behalf of
the special district, including information regarding taxes collected, interest and fees.

Retention: 10 years + current
Payroll Reports

See Schedule 15 Payrofi Records.
Revenue and Expenditure Reports

Reports including information regarding cost analysis, itemized expenditures and revenue
sharing.

Retention: 6 years + current
Departmental Expenditure Reports

31



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 1 year + current
Financial Reports — Monthly
Retention: 2 years + current

5.340 Tax Collection Records
Licenses Issued to Special District

License certificates which are fypically posted in the district office that are issued by other
agencies to the disfrict, including State sales tax license, withholding tax registration, State
ceriificate of exemption, etc.

Retention: 1 year after expiration
Property Tax Records

Records pertaining to the district's property tax assessment, including mill levy certifications to the
County, notices of assessed valuation received from the County, absfracts of assessment and
registers or listings of property tax assessed on parcels of land in the district.

Retention: Permanent
Sales and Use Tax Records

Records pertaining to the collection and refund of sales and use tax, including sales tax collection
reports.

Applications — Sales Tax

Retention: 2 years + current after business terminates
Audits — Sales Tax

Retention: 3 years + current

Delinquent Sales/Use Tax Notices

Retention: 5 years + current

Master File - Sales Tax

Retention: Until updated

Motor Vehicle Sales Tax Receipts

Retention: 1 year + current

32



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Register — Sales and Use Tax

See also Schedule 5 Ledgers and Journals.

Retention: Permanent

Returns - Sales and Use Tax

Retention: 3 years + current

Transaction Journal/Log

Record of sales and use tax daily transactions.

Retention: 2 years + current

Specific Ownership Tax Recorcds

Retention: See Schedule 5 Government Revenue Programs
5.350 Travel Expenses

See Schedule 5 Accounts Payable Records.
5.360 Utility Billing

Records relating to the billing of customers for utility services.

Account History Listing

Retention: 2 years + current after account closed

Adjustment Records

Records documenting account adjustments to customer accounts for water, sewer, power or
other utility services provided by the district,

Retention: 2 years
Billing Journals

Utility billing journals and registers for water, sewer or electric service. See also Schedule 5
Ledgers and Journals.

Retention: 6 years + current

Cash Receipt Journals

33



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 2 years + current
Initial Status Report
Retention: 1 year + current
Meter Records

Records relating to installation or removal of utility service meters and meter readings for water or
electric service,

Calibration and Testing Records

Documentation of testing and calibration of district operated water and power meters for
accuracy.

Retention: Life of equipment + 1 year

Meter Books

Used to record readings of customer's utility usage for billing purposes.
Retention: 2 years + current

Meter Deposit Receipts

Retention: 1 year + current

Meter Installation, Maintenance and Repair
Retention: 2 years

Meter inventory

Retention: Until superseded

Meter Location Records

Retention: 1 year after remaval of meter
Meter Orders

Retention: 1 year + current

Meter Reading Exception Report

Retention: 1 year + current

34



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Meter Reading Sheets
Retention: 2 years + current
Nonpayment Billing Notices

Records of notices sent to utility customers regarding nonpayment of utility billings and
termination of service.

Initial Notices

Retention: 6 months

Final Notice

Retention: 1 year

Security Deposit Records

Records documenting customer payment of a security deposit to receive water, sewer, power or
other utility services.

Retention: 2 years after refund or last action
Service Orders
New Service Orders
Records documenting new utility service.
Retention: 1 year + current
Trouble Orders
Records documenting utility service complaints and problems.
Retention: 1 year + current
Turn-Off Orders
Records documenting the termination of utility service.
Retention: 2 years + current
Statements

Water and sewer billing statements or invoices.

35



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 3 years + current

Utility Rate Schedules and Supporting Documentation

See 5.360.H, Rate Schedules and Supporting Documentation — Uility Billing.
Utility Rate Schedules and Supporting Documentation

Fee and rate schedules and supporting documentation justifying the determination of special
district utility fees and rates; i.e., calculations, methodology for establishing the fee or rate,
comparisons with other districts or comparable municipalities, projections of revenue based on
recommended fees rates, etc.

1. Flat Rate Documentation
Retention: Until metered rates are established and bilied
2. Metered Rate Documentation
Retention: 3 years + current
5.370 Warrants/Checks
See Schedule 5 Accounts Payable.
5.380 Worksheets - Financial

Documents such as rough notes, calculations or drafts assembled or created and used to prepare
or analyze other documents; spreadsheets, worksheets, preparatory notes, tentative financial
estimates and projections, and other documentation of a preliminary or deliberative and transitory
nature. See also Schedule 7 Worksheets and Drafts.

Retention: Until no longer needed

36






RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 6
FLEET AND EQUIPMENT RECORDS

General Description: Records documenting the acquisition and operation of district owned or leased
vehicles and equipment. The specified retention period applies to the information contained within the

record, regardiess of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilrm, computer disk or tape, optical
disk, etc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

6.10 Agreements - Acquisition, Lease, Maintenance And Service
See Schedule 7 Agreements and Contracts.
6.20 Auction Records
See Schedule 5 Fixed Asset Records.
6.30 Bills Of Sale
Bills of sale documenting acquisition or disposition of vehicles or equipment by the special district.
Retention: Until after audit of records pertaining to disposition of vehicle or equipment
6.40 Communication Systems Licenses

Licenses issued by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) or other agencies for radio
system and other communication system operations of the special district, and supporting
documentation.

Retention: 1 year after expiration of license
6.50 Computer System Records

Records pertaining to the installation and operation of computer systems and software used by
the district.

Computer Backup Documentation

Documentation related to regular computer records backups.
Retention; 1 year after superseded or obsolete

Computer System Maintenance Records

37



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Documentation of maintenance of district computer systems.
Retention: Life of system or component + 1 year
Computer System Program Records

Documentation pertaining to development, installation, modification, troubleshooting, operation
and removal of software from district computer systems; records required fo plan, develop,
operate, maintain and use electronic records; system specifications, file specifications,
codebooks, record layouts, user guides and output specifications.

Retention: Until superseded or no longer needed to retrieve or read data and information that is
stored electronically

Computer System Security

Records documenting security of the district's computer systems, including employee access
requests, passwords, access authorizations and similar documentation.,

Retention: 3 years after superseded
Computer System Wiring

Documentation of the wiring of the district's computer network system, including blueprints,
diagrams and drawings of layout and installations of fiber optics, computer networks, cables,
computer equipment connections and similar documentation.

Retention: Current and previous versions
Electronic Mail

See Schedule 7 Efectronic Records.
Software Management

Documentation of the use of software in district information systems, including records of
software purchases, inventories, software and site licensing, copyright compliance and upgrades.

Retention: 2 years after disposal or upgrade of software
Website Development and Evolution
Documentation of development and changes to the district's website.

Retention: Recommend that the last two iterations of the website be retained if possible.

6.60 Equipment Records

38



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records pertaining to major mechanical systems in district owned facilities, including fire and
water detection alarm systems; heating, ventilation, air conditioning (HVAC) and similar

mechanical systems; disaster warning systems; elevators; sump pumps; power generators;
boilers etc.

Retention: Life of equipment + 1 year

6.70 Fuel Records

Records pertaining to fuel usage by district vehicles and equipment, including periodic fuel usage
reports.

Retention: 2 years
6.80 Insurance Coverage
See Schedule 5 Insurance.
6.90 Inventories - Fleet And Equipment

Listings of vehicles, equipment and similar property owned by the special district. See also
Schedule 5 Fixed Asset Records — Inventories.

Retention: Until revised
6.100 Lease-Purchase Records
See Schedule 5 Purchasing Records.
6.110 Maintenance And Safety Records
Driver Vehicle Inspection Reports

Vehicle inspection reports and documentation of corrective actions taken by motor carriers or
their agents with regard to defects or deficiencies noted during the inspection prior to operation of
a motor vehicle. Note: A legible copy of the last vehicle inspection report is to be carried in the
vehicle. See also Schedufe 6 Vehicle Histories.

Retention: 3 months [49 CFR 396.11 and 49 396.13]
Inspection and Maintenance Documentation — Public Safety

Records and reports pertaining to maintenance and inspections performed for public safety
vehicles and equipment.

Retention: Life of unit + 1 year

Work Orders

39



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

See Schedule 6 Work Orders.
6.120 Manuals - Vehicle And Equipment

Manuals provided by the vendor regarding specifications and proper installation, operation and
maintenance of vehicles or equipment.

Retention: Life of unit + 1 year

6.130 Office Equipment Records

Records pertaining to the acquisition, installation and operation of office equipment used by the
district. See also Schedule 6 Computer Sysfem Records.

Retention: Life of equipment + 1 year
6.140 Policies And Procedures

See Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Documentation.
6.150 Purchasing Records

See Schedule 5 Purchasing Records.
6.160 Telephone System - District Buildings

information pertaining to the acquisition, instaliation and operation of the internal telephone
system used at the district building and other district facilities.

Retention: Life of system + 1 year
6.170 Unclaimed Personal Property

See Schedule 5 Fixed Asset Records — Disposition Records.
6.180 Vehicle Histories

Records outlining the acquisition and maintenance history of a vehicle, often stored in the vehicle.
See also Schedule 6 Maintenance and Safety Records.

Retention: Life of vehicle + 1 year
6.190 Vehicle Registration Certificates

Decumentation issued by the County motor vehicle department providing information regarding
vehicle licensing and ownership, ownership taxes paid and vehicle identification number.

Retention: Until superseded or disposition of vehicle

40



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

6.200 Vehicle Titles
Title proving ownership of motor vehicles owned by the special district.
Retention: Transfer to new owner upon disposition of vehicle

6.210 Warranties

Records of manufacturer's warranties and guarantees relating to aperation or replacement of
vehicles, equipment or components.

Retention: Life of equipment or expiration of warranty + 1 year, whichever is later

6.220 Work Orders

Documentation of requests and authorizations for work performed with regard to vehicles and
equipment. See also 6.180, Vehicle Histories.

Retention: 1 year + current unless the work order provides the only available vehicle history, in
which case it should be retained for the life of the vehicle or equipment + 1 year

41






RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 7
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE RECORDS

General Description: General administrative records include those for which the "record" copy is kept by
the district or another office and for which duplicate copies are widely distributed throughout the
organization for reference or informational purposes. This schedule also addresses records that are
typically kept by any number of departments in an organization, such as project records. The specified
retention period applies to the information contained within the record, regardiess of the physical format of
the record (paper, microfiim, computer disk or tape, optical disk, efc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

7.05 Administrative Proceedings Records

Records of formal administrative proceedings conducted by district staff {possibly subject to
appeal to the governing body or the courts) in accordance with law to make administrative rulings

or determinations regarding a variety of matters See also 3.110 Petitions - Election - Profest
Records.

Retention: 2 years + current provided all rights of appeal have expired.

7.10 Affidavits Of Publication

Proof of publication provided by newspapers regarding publication of public hearing notices, bid
solicitations, bond redemption notices, payment of bills, etc, Affidavits of publication are also
sometimes known as "legals™ or "proofs."

Retention: § years + current, unless it provides the only existing copy of a permanent document.

7.20 Agreements And Contracts

Agreements and contracts of various kinds that document some form of agreement that is
enforceable by law between the special district and other parties, including but not limited to
intergovernmental agreements, memoranda of understanding, franchise agreements, lease
agreements, professional services agreements, etc. Note: See other Schedules for various types
of agreements and contracts.

Retention: 6 years + current after expiration or fulfillment of all terms of the agreement or
contract, whichever is later, provided that audit has been completed and that the agreement or
contract no longer has any binding effect; except prior to destruction, evaluate for continuing
legal, administrative or historical value

7.30 Associations And Organizations

See Schedule 7 External Groups and Agencies and Memberships.

42



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

7.40 Awards And Honors

Awards and honors received by the special district, departments or district programs from various
public or private sources.

Retention: Permanent
7.50 Service Plan/Statement of Purposes Records
Service Plan Proceedings

Records relating to the adoption, modification or repeal of the district Service Plan or provisions of
the Service Plan. See also Schedule 3 Petitions — Election.

Retention: Permanent
7.60 Code Book Records
Codes Adopted by Reference

Includes, model traffic code, uniform building and construction codes, fire codes and supplements
to such codes, and other similar codes adopted by resclution of the special district.

Retention: Retain 1 copy permanently for historical purposes
Duplicate Copies: Until superseded
7.70 Committees - Internal

Records of committees, task forces or other types of groups composed of members of the staff
and/or other district entities that meet on an ongoing basis or that are set up for specific
purposes. Examples include staff mestings, employee safety committees, teams established to
work on district issues, etc.

Ongoing Committees

Retention: 2 years + current, provided records have no enduring value

Special Committees

Retention: Until work of committee concludes, provided records have no enduring value
7.80 Complaints, Routine Service Requests And Nonbinding Petitions

Communications of various types that convey objections, dissatisfaction or disagreement with
actions or positions taken or not taken by the district; routine requests for service or information;
and petitions with no legal effect that are submitted to the district to express the opinions of the
sighers. See also Schedule 8 Minutes and Suppotting Documentation.

43



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 1 year + current after response or action by the district
7.90 Correspondence And General Documentation

Correspondence is a written communication that is sent to or received by 1 or more individuals
via the U.S. mail, private courier, facsimile transmission or electronic mail (see Schedule 7
Electronic Maif), including letters, postcards, memoranda, notes, telecommunications and any
other form of addressed, written communications that are sent or received by the district. The
term general docurnentation is intended to cover a wide variety of records created in the normal
course of business.

Calendars and Notes

Records kept to document and facilitate the routine planning and scheduling of meetings,
appointments and similar activities; includes calendars, appointment books, telephone messages,
notes, diaries and similar records with routine content.

Retention: 1 year
Enduring Long-Term Value

Documentation or correspondence with enduring and long-term administrative, policy, legal,
fiscal, historical or research value; records that relate to policy issues and actions or activities in
which an important precedent is set; records of historic events relating to the special district or the
community; and other similar records and documentation.

Retention: Permanent
Routine Value

Operating documentation that is routine and contains no significant administrative, legal, fiscal,
historical, informational or statistical value. Includes routine letters or memoranda sent and
received, reading or chronological files that are kept solely for convenience and contain
duplicates of memos or letters that are also filed elsewhere, routine requesis for information,
transmittal documents, etc., and includes e-mail.

Retention: 1 year + current
Transitory Value

General documentation of extremely short-term value, including advertisements, drafts and
worksheets, desk notes, copies of materials circulated for informational "read only” purposes,
other records with preliminary or short-term informational value, and includes e-mail.

Retention: Until material has been read
7.100 Electronic Records
Computer-Maintained Records

44



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records manipulated and stored using computer technologies.
Retention: Follow the retention schedule for the specific type of record
Electronic Mail

Electronic mail is an electronic message that is transmitted between 2 or more computers or
electronic terminals, whether or not the message is converted to hard copy format after receipt
and whether or not the message is viewed upon transmission or stored for later retrieval,
including electronic messages that are transmitted through a local, regional or global computer
network [CRS 24-72-204.5],

Retenfion: Follow the retention schedule for the specific type of record
7.110 Event Records

Records pertaining to promotion and organization of special and historic community events or
celebrations in which the district has a role, such as festivals, fairs, rodeos, 4" of Juty
celebrations, pioneer days, Christmas lighting, etc.

Retention: 2 years after event concludes, except retain records documenting significant aspects
of the event permanently

7.120 External Groups And Agencies

Records such as meeting agendas and minutes, studies and reports and other material provided
to the district for courtesy or informational purposes from associations, organizations, groups and
agencies that are not part of the special district organization but which have some form of
association or relationship with the special district. See also 7.200, Memberships and 7.365,
Special District Records.

Retention: Until no longer needed for special district reference or informational purposes
7.130 Forms - Blank

Blank forms are not considered to be records and should be separated from the district’s records.
However, a master forms file may be maintained to track the evolution of the form and
instructions regarding use of the form.

Retention: Until superseded, except retain 1 copy permanently if a master forms file is maintained
Duplicate Copies: Unitil superseded
7.140 General Subject Files

Files containing correspondence, reports, technical papers, studies, reference materials and
other records related or received in the general administration of a program or in the daily
management of departments or offices.

45



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

General Administrative Records

Records of a general administrative nature that are created or received in the course of
administering programs, including daily, weekly or monthly activity reports which are summarized
in an annual report. See also Schedule 7 Program Records and Reports.

Retention: 1 year + current or until no longer needed for reference

Housekeeping Files

Records of a general housekeeping nature that are maintained by an office and that do not relate
directly to the primary program responsibility of the office. Includes records such as charity fund
drives, office parties, custodial service requests, parking space assignments, telephone and fax
logs, and distribution of keys.

Retention: Until no longer needed for reference
Policy and Program Development Records

Records documenting the formulation and adoption of policies and procedures and the functions
of the district or its departments. Includes narrative or statistical reports, related correspondence
on program activities, organizational charts and mission statement studies regarding district or
department operations, and records related to significant events in which the special district,
departments or individual offices participated. See also Schedule 7 Prograrm Records.

Retention: Permanent
Technical or General Reference Files

Non-record copies of articles, periodicals, reports, studies, vendor catalogs and similar materials
that are needed for reference and information but are not considered to be part of the office’s
records. See also Schedule 7 External Groups and Agencies.

Retention: Until no longer needed for reference
7.150 Legislation And Regulatory Actions
External

Records such as review copies of proposed or adopted state or federal bills, legislation or
regulations; notices of proposed rulemaking by federal or state agencies.

Retention: Until no longer needed for reference
Internal

See Schedule 8 Governing Body as Another Decision-Making Body.

7.160 Mailing And Distribution Records

46



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Documentation of transactions with the U.S. Postal Service or private carriers.
Certified Mail Return Receipts

Receipts retumed by the post office to document that the recipient received a mailing sent by the
special district.

Retention: 2 years after matter referenced in mailing is concluded
Envelopes
Envelopes that contained communications received by the district.

Retention: Dispose of immediately, unless needed in rare circumstances as documentation of
mailing and receipt dates

Mailing and Distribution Lists

Lists of names and addresses compiled for various mailings, such as billings, notifications,
community outreach and other administrative purposes.

Retention: Until superseded or obsolete
Meeting Notification Lists

Listings kept of persons who, within the previous 2 years, have requested advance notification of
all meetings or meetings with specific content [CRS 24-8-402(7)].

Retention: Until updated
Record of Mailing

Documentation of mailing dates, content of mailings and addressees for mailing sent by the
special district for various purposes.

Retention: 2 years
Undeliverable Mailings
Mailings (excluding mailed ballots) sent by the special district that were returned as undeliverable.
Retention: 2 years after matter referenced in mailing is concluded
7.170 Manuals And Handbooks
See Schedule 6 Manuals —Vehicles and Equipment and Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures

Documentation.

47



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

7.180 Maps And Drawings

Wide range of maps, drawings, architectural, cartographic and engineering records, including
maps, charts, photomaps, field survey notes, map history case files and map and drawing finding
aids; graphic representations at reduced scale of selected physical and cultural features of the
surface of the earth; architectural and engineering drawings depicting concepts and precise
measurements needed to plan and build static structures, such as huildings, bridges and streets;
design and construction drawings for major special district projects; maps and drawings stored
and generated by Geographic Information System (GIS) and computer-aided design (CAD)
systems; "as built" drawings of district facilities; inclusion and development plats and plans;
various construction drawings and renderings; special district boundary maps, election district
maps, USGS topographical maps of the area; and other similar documents.

Retention: Permanent

Duplicate Copies: Until superseded or no longer needed for reference

GIS Records

Geospatial data that is used to describe a particular location, area or feature. Records include
software, input (including electronic source data and data from source documents}), data in
electronic format, output to paper, disk, tape or other storage medium generated by the system,
and documentation needed to facilitate human understanding of the system.

Back-ups and Historical Snapshots — GIS

Back-up records retained for disaster recovery purposes and hisiorical snapshots {electronic
format) retained for historical and reference purposes containing all GIS data layers and
associated aftribute files, GIS user production areas, the operating system and other
miscellaneous software.

Back-ups for Disaster Recovery Purposes
Daily Back-up

Retention: 2 weeks

Monthly Back-up

Retention: 1 year

Replicate Copies

Copies retained on other work unit servers, in offsite data warehouse, on "read-only” district
system, or elsewhere, either onsite or offsite.

Retention: Until superseded by new version of back-up
Historical Snapshots

48



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent
Data Documentation and Metadata

Records created during development or modification of an automated system, which are
necessary to access, retrieve, manipulate and interpret data in that system and records that
explain the meaning, purpose, structure, logical relationships and origin of the data elements.
Data documentation includes data dictionaries {(containing information about data tayers, format
and other documentation), file layouts, code books or fables, definition files and information
regarding the retention period for the data and associated data documentation as well as
information regarding the frequency of historical snapshots of the data and data documentation.
Data documentation includes metadata (data about the data), i.e. the description of the data
resources, its characteristics, location, usage, etc. Metadata is used to identify, describe and
define user data.

Condensed (Temporaty) Metadata

Temporary generic information that provides a dataset fist (Word document) and basic
information about datasets, pending the storage of "real" metadata with datasets on the GIS;
includes dataset name, definitions and descriptions, data locations, significant items in attribute
(tabular) data, efc.

Retentien: Until superseded by metadata stored on GIS
Data Documentation and Metadata — Nonpermanent GIS Records

See also Datasets and Data Files — Temporary. Note: Obsolete temporary datasets are to be
purged from the system prior to each annual GIS snapshot.

Retention: 1 year after superseded, or until deletion of database
Data Documentation and Metadata — Permanent GIS Records

This retention schedule applies only to documentation relating to databases containing
permanent information. Important Note: Permanent data and its associated metadata and data
documentation is retained permanently only in its most updated form unless the dataset is to be
captured at specific points in time via a historical snapshot. See also Datasets and Data Files.

Retention: Until superseded
Datasets and Data Files — Permanent

A dataset is group of related records that are organized and treated as a unit or any set of data
that has a common theme or similar attributes. The term is used interchangeably with the term
data fife. Datasets are part of the GIS database. A data layer refers to a conceptual grouping of
data that share common characteristics, such as a layer composed of base or thematic data, e.g.
roads (base) or wildlife habitat (thematic). Geographic data combines and links graphic
representations of features or events found on the earth with corresponding tabular (attribute)
data. Important Note: Permanent data is retained permanently only in its most updated form
unless the dataset is to be captured at specific points in time via a historical snapshot.

49



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Aerial Photograph and Image Datasets

Photographs and digital images of the earth that have been taken from airborne vehicles to
evaluate, measure or map selected features of the landscape.

Retention: Until superseded
Base Datasets

Core data working files that are sets of information providing a background orientation for another
layer of primary focus. Examples: ground and water features (roads, streams, lakes, canals,
railroads, etc.) and parcels, addresses, quarter sections, etc.

Retention; Until superseded

Building and Structure Datasets

Building footprints, public buildings, building inspection zones, building permits, etc.
Retention: Until superseded

Business Information Datasets

Business locations, licensed establishments, etc.

Retention: Until superseded

Census Datasets

Census block groups, census tract boundaries, census update boundaries, etc.
Retention: Until superseded

Communication System Datasets

Fiber optic network installations.

Retention: Until superseded

Emergency Dispatch Datasets

Emergency telephone dataset used for emergency services dispatch.
Retention: Until superseded

Engineering Datasets

Street standards and facilities, etc.

50



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Until superseded
Environmental Datasets

Geologic data, soils data, radon data, etc.
Retention: Until superseded

Facilities Datasets

Community facilities locations, district buildings and facilities, natural areas, parks, protective
services facilities, public art locations, school locations, trails, pedestrian and bicycle trails, etc.

Retention: Until superseded
Jurisdictional Boundary Datasets

Special District limits, election boundary maps, boundary maps of palitical subdivisions and taxing
districts, enterprise zones, historic districts, protective services patrol and enforcement areas,
school district boundaries, urban growth area maps, zip code boundaries, other special district,
etc.

Boundaries — Special District Jurisdictional Units
Retention: Until superseded

Boundaries — Other Jurisdictions

Retention: Until superseded

Land Use and Planning Datasels

Inclusions and exclusions, pending and approved developments, neighborhood planning areas,
habitat data, current and proposed land uses, corridor study data, airport impact data,
comprehensive plan (Structure Plan) data, transit routes, travel corridors, vacant land inventories,
current and proposed zoning, zoning violations, etc.

Retention: Until superseded
Stormwater and Flooding Datasets

Base flood elevations, storm drainage basins, floodplains and floodways, historic flooding data,
facility inventories, monitoring system data, etc.

Retention: Until superseded

Transportation System Datasets

51



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Alley and street system data, bicycle and bus routing data, master street plan, sireet maintenance
data, traffic flow data, etc.

Retention: Until superseded
Datasets and Data Files — Temporary
Assessor Datasets

GIS data layers containing property or land ownership information obtained from the County
Assessor.

Retention: Until superseded
Symbol Datasets

Special District logo, highway marker symbols, parking lot symbols and similar mapping symbols
used for prinfing purposes.

Reiention: Until superseded
Temporary Data — in General

Datasets or data subsets created for one-time or shori-term use or for the creation of various
versions of mapping products.

Retention: 30 days after use, unless the customer requests that the temporary dataset be
retained for possible future use. Note: Temporary datasets will appear on periodic computer
back-up tapes, and those that are obsolete should be purged from the system before capturing
the annual historical snapshot of GIS.

Fee Colflections

Records of orders and receipts for payment from external customers for mapping products.
Retention; 2 years + current

Finding Aids

See Data Documentation and Mefadata.

Policy Documentafion - GIS

Records of GIS policies including those covering access and security, systems development,
data retention and disposition, data distribution, rules governing issuance of data, and data
ownership, etc.

Retention: Permanent

52



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Processing Files

System logs and other processing files (electronic or printed on demand), including work files,
test files, input/source files, intermediate input/output files, valid transaction files, documentation
of users and operations, and audit trail files.

Retention: Follow system schedule
Source Documents - GIS

Raw data or documents or "source records"” containing images and/or data provided to GIS in
hard copy, microform or electronic format. Note: Metadata should include information regarding
the source of the data.

Externally Acquired Source Material

GIS input and auto cad system input regarding plats and subdivisions, field book information,
legal descriptions, images of plats, data and other source material acquired from other agencies
and organizations.

Retention: Until uploaded to GIS, provided source of data is noted in data documentation
Internally Acquired Source Material

Replicate Source Data — District Departments

Retention: Until uploaded to GIS

Surveying Source Data

Special District surveyor's reports and field notes from property surveys used to identify
monuments, landmarks, buildings, etc. Engineering control and survey point data. Legal
descriptions developed from surveys and surveying data returned from field instruments including
horizontal angles, slope distance, horizontal distance, zenith angles, sun observations, drawings,
stc.

Retention: Until data is transferred to GIS
Standards

Requirements that are intended to make hardware, software and data compatible and that cover
data capture, accuraey, sources, base categories, output, and data element dictionaries.

Retention: Life of GIS
Website Records

Annual snapshot of GIS web page (electronic format).

53



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent

7.190 Maps - Informational

Maps that are acquired from external sources and are used for district reference and
informational purposes for the district or the public, such as county maps.

Retsntion: Until superseded or no longer needed for reference

7.200 Memberships

Records of memberships that are paid for by the district for district officials, employees or the
district as an organization in professional associations and organizaticns such as the Special
District Association of Colorado, the Association of Records Managers and Administrators, the
Colorado State Fire Chiefs Association, and similar professional or county/municipal/special
district associations and organizations.

Retention: 2 years

7.210 Minutes

See Schedule 4 Minutes and Supporting Documentation; Schedule 7 Commitfees — Internal; and
Schedule 8 Minutes and Supporting Documentation.

7.220 News Clippings
See Schedule 9 Scrapbooks.

7.230 News Releases
See also Schedule 7 Public Relafions Records.
Releases — Policy or Historical Value

Prepared statements or announcements issued to the news media announcing district events,
new programs, program changes or termination, major shifts in policy and changes in officials or
senior administrative personnel.

Retention; Permanent

Releases — Routine

Prepared statements or announcements of minor or routine events, activities, etc.
Retention: 3 years + current

7.235 Open Records Requestsand Supporting Documentation

54



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Formal requests for records submitted in accordance with state law and supporting documenta-
tion relating to the special districts's response to or denial of the request.

Retention: 1 year + current after request is answerad
7.240 Organization Files

Records that contain organization charts, reorganization studies and similar information that
illustrates or provides a detailed description of the arrangement and administrative structure of
the special district.

Retention: Permanent
7.250 Petitions, Objections And Remonstrances

See Schedule 7 Complaints, Routine Service Requests and Nonbinding Petitions; Schedule 7
Correspondence and General Documentation; and Schedule 3 Petitions — Election.

7.260 Policies And Procedures Documentation

Written instructions, rules and guidelines in manual form documenting current and past
authorized district policies and procedures, including departmental or organization-wide
directives, policy or operations manuals, instruction manuals, handbooks and memoranda setting
out responsibilities and guidelines or outlining policies and procedures. See alsc Schedule 7
General Subject Files — Policy and Program Development Records.

Clerical Manuals — Routine

Retention: 2 years after superseded or obsolete
Manuals from External Sources

Retention: Until superseded or no longer needed
Policies and Procedures Documentation — In General

Documentation, including written materials such as personnel pelicy manuals and standard
operating procedures, that would be useful in establishing past policies or procedures in liability
cases, personnel disputes and other circumstances.

Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Until superseded
7.270 Program Records

Records pertaining to ongoing or special events or activities held at district facilities and programs
provided by the district as recreational or cultural amenities for the community. See also Schedule
7 General Subject Fifes — Policy and Program Development Records.

55



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Districts

Records of other disiricts that provide program services to district residents, such as recreation
districts, library districts, etc. See 7.365 Special District Records.

Facility and Program Use Records

Records relating to registration and admission to programs sponsored by the special district,
room and facility reservation sheets, permits for facility or park usage, annual or seasonal passes
for recreational programs, program and event descriptions, documentation of public use of
faciliies for which formal registrations or permits are required, etc.

Retention: 1 year + current

Fees and Rates

See Schedule 5 Accounts Receivable Records and Fee and Rate Schedules.
Liability Waivers

Forms signed by program participants to release the district from any liability related to various
actlivities.

Retention: 3 years + current

Library Records

Records pertaining to the operation of a library as a special district.
Baok Requisitions

Retention: 1 year + cutrent

Catalogs

Finding aids in card or computer form that provide patrons with access to library holdings.
Retention: Until superseded or obsolete

Circulation Statistics

Retention: Permanent

Gift Register

Retention: Permanent

Interlibrary Loan Transactions/Reciprocal Borrowing Sheets

56



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 3 years + current
Patrons' Registration Forms
Retention: 6 years + current
Museum Records

Records documenting the acquisition and ownership of museum materials in museums, local
history collections, and similar collections or repositories owned and operated by the special
district, including: raw {untouched) image files of museum artifacts; temporary custody forms
documenting chain of custody of materials held for review pending a decision on permanent
acquisition; contracts of gift or deeds of gift forms documenting permanent acquisitions; incoming
loan and outgoing loan forms documenting the chain of custody of materials [oaned to the
museum or loaned by the museum to other repositories; and deaccession records documenting
the removal of materials from the collection.

Retention: Permanent
Other Programs Sponsored by Special District

Documentation needed for reference in developing future programs, including program flyers,
press releases, etc. Examples of district programs include recreation, senior citizen and youth
programs. See Schedufe 7 General Subject Files — Policy and Program Development Records.

Support Groups — Special District Programs

Groups organized In support of district programs, such as senior citizen community groups, youth
groups, Friends of the Library or Museum, and similar groups. See Schedule 7 External Groups
and Agencies.

Sister City Program

Records of participation of the district in sister programs with cities/districts in other countries,
including documentation of selection of sister cities, administration of the program, exchange
visits, photographs and related documentation.

Retention: Permanent

7.280 Project Files
Capital Projects
Records of capital projects, professional services relating to capital improvements and projects
relating to the design, engineering, construction, major repair, renovation or demolition of district
owned structures, buildings, facilities, bridges, streets and roadways, utility system feafures,
public works, parks, stormwater and storm drainage facilities, dams and reservoirs, other water

projects, fiber optics and communications structures and other infrastructure. Project files may
include documentation such as final project reports, specifications and contract documents,

57



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

certificates of insurance, project-related permits and licenses issued to the special district by
other entities, notices to proceed and of final settlement, project pay estimates, change orders
and correspondence and general documentation.

Retention: 6 years + current after replacement, demclition or transfer of the improvement to
another entity, except that routine material may be purged when eligible for destruction under this
Retention Schedule and except that, prior to destruction, the records must be evaluated for
continuing legal, administrative or historical value [CRS 24-16-105]

1. Project Bonds
a. Labor and Materials Bonds

Surety or other types of bonds received from contractors to guarantee payment
by the contractor to workers, subcontractors and suppliers.

Retention: & years + current after expiration or project completion, whichever is
later

b. Performance and Payment Bonds

Surety or other types of bonds received from contractors to guarantee
performance and payments for district projects.

Retention: 1 year + current after project completion
2. Project Control Files

Contain routine memoranda, preliminary reports, and other general documentation and
records documenting assignments and the progress of projects. Note: Does not include
final reports, which are to be retained as part of the project file (see above).

Refention: 1 year after project is closed
B. Information Technology Projects [Reserved]
C. Noncapital Projects

Records relating to other types of "projects” that do not relate to capital improvements;
i.e., these would typically be working files documenting an activity, plan, program,
assignment, new undertaking, etc. See 7.140, General Subject Files.

Major Projects

Records of major projects, goods and services acquired relating to capital improvements and
permanent assets of the special district; design, engineering, construction, repair and/or major
maintenance of district owned buildings, facilities, roadways, ufilities, public works and other
infrastructure valued at over $ [threshold to be determined by each individual
district]. Project files may include documentation such as final project reports, specifications and

58



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

contract documents, notices to proceed and of finat settlement, project pay estimates, change
orders and correspondence and general documentation.

Retention: Permanent
Minor Projects

Records of minor projects, goods and services acquired relating to capital improvements, design,
engineering, construction, repair and/or maintenance of district owned buildings, facilities,
roadways, utilities, public works and other infrastructure under $ in value [threshold to be
determined by each individual district]. Project files may include documentation such as final
project reports, specifications and contract documents, notices to proceed and of final settlement,
project pay estimates, change orders and correspondence and general documentation.

Retention: 2 years after project completion, provided there is no legal or administrative value
Profect Bonds
Labor and Materials Bonds

Surety or other types of bonds received from contractors to guarantee payment by the
contractor to workers, subcontractors and suppliers.

Retention: 6 years + current
Performance and Payment Bonds

Surety or other types of bonds received from contractors to guarantee performance and
payments for district projects.

Retention: 1 year + current after project completion
Project Control Files

Contain routine memoranda, preliminary reports, and other general documentation and records
documenting assignments and the progress of projects. Note: Does not include final reports,
which are to be retained as part of the project file (see above).

Retention: 1 year after project is closed
7.290 Public Relations Records

Speeches, addresses, and comments of public officials, remarks made at formal district
ceremonies by elected district officials, etc. Includes paper, videotape, motion picture or tape
recordings. See also Schedule 7 News Releases.

Retention: Permanent

7.300 Publications

59



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Documents printed or otherwise produced for wide internal or external distribution, including
annual reports, brochures, pamphlets, leaflets, studies, proposals, newsletters, instructional
materials, and similar materials printed by or for the district or any of its departments, and made
available to the public. See also Appendix A Non-Records relating to publications of other
agencies or entities that are not considered to be districtl records for retention purposes.

Retention: Permanent

7.310 Records Finding Aids

Manual or automated indexes, lists, registers, and other finding aids designed to make it easier to
locate pertinent files or information.

Retention: Life of the record for which the finding aid is designed to facilitate use and retrieval

7.320 Regulations And Standards

Documentation of rules, regulations, standards and similar guidelines and requirements adopted
by the special district in relation to various activities and functions. Examples may include building
regulations and standards, cemetery rules and regulations, streetscape standards, street and
sidewalk construction standards, water and sewer line installation standards, etc.

Retention: Permanent

Duplicate Copies: Until superseded

7.330 Reports

Written reports regarding the operations or activities of the special district or its individual
employees, departments or service areas, prepared for use in compiling other reports, planning
and budgeting, monitoring work progress, etc.

Annual Reports

Summary annual reports of individual departments or the district as a whole on primary program
activities and accomplishments for the previous year; may include statistics, narrative reports,
graphs, and diagrams,

Retention: Permanent

Daily Reports

Reports documenting the daily activities of employees or work units.
Retention: 1 year + current

Monthly or Weekly Reporis

60




RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Reports of staff or departments on program activities and accomplishments for the previous
month/week.

Retention: 1 year + current
Quarterly Reports

Reports of staff or departments on program activities and accomplishments for the previous three
months.

Retention: 2 years + current
7.340 Retention Schedules And Compliance Certificates

Authorizations for the retention or disposition of records issued for the special district and/or its’
departments by the Colorado State Archives and certificates of compliance completed to track the
authorized destruction of special district records.
Retention: Permanent

7.350 Rules And Regulations
See Schedule 7 Regulations and Standards.

7.360 Software And Software Manuals
See Schedule 6 Computer System Records.

7.365 Special District Records

Records pertaining to water, sanitation, flood control, urban drainage, metropaolitan, airport,
jibrary, fire, ambulance and other special districts that provide services within the special district,
including service area plans, boundary maps, service agreements, intergovernmental
agreements, memoranda of understanding, other agreements and contracts, and supporting
documentation.

Retention: 6 years + current after the district's agreement with the special district no longer has
any binding effact, then evaluate for continuing value prior to destruction

7.370 Standards
See Schedule 7 Regulations and Standards.
7.380 Studies, Plans And Reports

Documenis prepared by the district or by external entities on behalf of the district. Examples
include feasibility studies, planning and land use studies, basin plans, capital projects reports,
transportation system plans, master street plans and similar documents that have long-term
reference or historical value. Studies, plans and reports retained by the district that are prepared

61



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

by or on behalf of other entities, and which include information of interest to the district, should be
evaluated for long-term reference or historical value to the special district. See also Schedule 7
Reports and Schedule 11 Plans, Studies and Reports.

Retention: Permanent
7.390 Surveys And Questionnaires

Copies of completed miscellaneous surveys, questionnaires and similar instruments that are
routine and are received and completed by the special district for return to the originator.

Retention: 1 year + current
7.395 Surveys Conducted By Special Districts
Compilations
Retention: Permanent
Survey Responses
Retention: 1 year + current after compilation complete
7.400 Training And Conference Materials

Records documenting activities of district officials or employees at seminars, conferences or other
training sessions not sponsored by the district, including instructional materials obtained by
officials and staff members at conferences, seminars or other types of external training sessions.
See also Schedule 15 Training Information.

Retention: 2 years
7.410 Worksheets And Drafts

Documents such as rough notes, calculations or drafts assembled or created and used to prepare
or analyze other documents; records of a preliminary or working nature which do not represent
significant steps in the preparation of the final version of documents; includes informal notes,
preliminary drafts of letters, memoranda, reports, computer or printer output used to verify
information entered into a computer and not considered to be a final copy, etc. See also Scheduie
5 Worksheets — Financial.

Retention: Until no longer needed

62



o= o



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 8
GOVERNING BODY RECORDS

General Description: Records regarding the composition, operation, proceedings and enactments of the
goveming body of the special district. The specified retention period applies to the information contained
within the record, regardless of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape,
optical disk, etc.). See Schedule 7 Committees - Internal for records of staff and other internal
committees and Schedule 7 External Groups and Agencies for records kept by the district of outside
groups and entities not appointed by the district.

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
shouid not be retained longer than the record copy.

8.10 Agenda Supporting Documentation

Material such as agenda item summaries and supporting documentation, memos or other
material presented to the governing body relating to decisions to be made at meetings;
supporting documentation for minutes. See also Schedule 8 Minutes and Supporting
Documentation and Packets Distributed to Governing Body.

Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Until meeting is over
8.20 Agendas

Listings showing date, time and locations of official meetings and items to be discusses by the
governing body at regularly scheduied, special and emergency public meeiings.

Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Until meeting is over
8:30 Appointments

Applications and other documentation regarding the filling of interim governing body vacancies by
appointment.

Retention: 1 year + current after term of appointment ends
8.40 Bylaws

Documents adopted by the governing body to set out guidelines regarding operation of the
governing body.

63



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Untit superseded
8.45 Commiittee Records - Governing Body

Records of ongoing and ad hoc committees made up of only governing body members.
Examples of committees include finance or budget committee, ethics committee, legislative
affairs committee, etc.

Retention: Follow the retention periods set forth in the schedule for comparable records of the
governing body (i.e., agendas, minutes and supporting documentation, notices of meetings,
recordings, etc.)

8.50 Enterprise Board Records
See Schedule 8 Governing Body as Another Decision-Making Body.

8.60 Goals
Formally adopted strategic pfans or policy agendas set out by the governing body.
Retention: Permanent

8.70 Governing Body As Another Decision-Making Body

Records of the governing body constituted and convened as another decision-making body, such
as the Board of Directors of a district or the Enterprise Board of Directors for a water or
wastewater utility enterprise, etc. See also Schedule 4

Retention: Follow Schedule 8 for specific types of records
8.80 Legislative Lobbying Records

Records of official positions taken by the special district and lobbying efforts with regard to state
or federal legislation or ballot measures of interest to the district.

Retention: 4 years, except that Resolutions adopting legislative positions are permanent.
8.90 List of Members

Listings of names of individuals appointed or elected to the governing body, dates of service, last
known address and similar information.

Retention: Until superseded

8.100 Member Records

64



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Files documenting the service and tenure of members of the governing body, including
appoiniments to various committees and bodies, resignations and other documentation relating to
the member's service to the district. See also Schedule 8 Oaths of Office

Retention: Permanent
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statements

Statements of perceived conflicts of interest filed by members of the governing body for public
inspection.

Retention: 2 years + current after service ends or the conflict of interest no longer exists
Financial Disclosure Statements
Statements of financial interest filed by members of the govemning body for public inspection.
Retention: 1 Year + current after service ends

8.110 Minutes and Supporting Documentation

Official record of the proceedings of the governing body prepared by the board secretary and
supporting documentation of a substantive nature such as exhibits referenced in the minutes.

Retention: Permanent
Routine Supporting Documentation Submitted at Meetings

Routine letters, nonbinding petitions and other written materials submitted at meetings and
referenced in summary form (title, date and brief description} in the minutes. See also Schedule
7 Complaints, Routine Service requests and Nonbinding Petitions.

Retention: 1 years + current after meeting provided summary description is included in minutes
8.120 Notes Taken At Meetings
Handwritten or other notes made at meetings to facilitate the preparaton of meeting minutes.
Retention: Until meeting minutes are approved
8.130 Notices of Meetings

Documentation of compliance with laws requiring posting, mailing, publication or other distribution
of public notice of meefings of the governing body.

Retention: 1 year + current

8.140 Oaths of Office

65



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Oaths of office faken and subscribed o by elected or appointed officials within 30 days of election
or appeintment. [CRS 32-1-901]
Retention: 1 years + current after term expires.
8.160 Orientation And Training Information
See Schedule 8 Packets Distributed to Governing Body.
8.170 Packets of Information Distributed To Governing Body - Convenience Copies

Convenience copies of batches of information periodically distributed to members of the
governing body for informational purposes, including correspondence, copies of agenda materials
and minutes for review, copies of staff memos, etc.

{Note: This listing applies to convenience copies of such information that may be retained intact
by some municipalities for ready reference. Other copies of material included in this type of
information packet, such as agenda item summaries, minutes, correspondence, etc., may also be
retained elsewhere as a different record with a different purpose for a different retention period

Retention: 3 years + current

Duplicate Copies: 1 year or until no longer needed for reference, whichever is first

8.180 Proclamations

Documents issued by the district to proclaim support for district, municipal, county or community
events, activities, programs or in connecticn with dedications or other ceremonial occasions, etc.

Retention: Permanent

8.200 Resolutions

Enactments of the governing body which may be legislative or non-legislative in nature and which
may be used for various types of legislative actions, appropriations, approvals, pclicy statements,
statements of position and similar actions.

Retention: Permanent
8.210 Signature Certificates

Facsimile signature certificates that are filed with the Secretary of State's office for authentication
and verification of the signature on district documents

Retention: 1 year after term of office ends

8.220 Recordings or Meetings

66



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Audio, video or other recordings of official meetings typically used to prepare minutes or
transcripts of the meeting

Executive Sessions

Retention: 90 days after the meeting [CRS 24-6-402(2){d.5)(I1}E)]
Open Meetings

Retention: 6 months after approval of the minutes

Study Sessions

Retention: 6 months after the meeting

67



gn- BEN

Mg =

= =



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 9

HISTORICAL RECORDS?®

General Description: Records that have historical importance as documentation and evidence of the
origins and evolution of the special district. The specified retention period applies to the information
contained within the record, regardfess of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer
disk or tape, optical disk, efc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

9.05 Archaeological And Historical Site Records
Records relating to archaeological and historical sites within the district,
Retention: Permanent

9.10 Community And Special District Histories

Narrative histories of the special district, departments and community prepared for reference and
informational purposes.

Retention: Permanent

9.20 Community Records

Significant historical records (often fragmentary) of early community groups, businesses and
prominent individuals typically found in the district clerk's office or local history collections.

Retention: Permanent Note: Contact State Archives for assistance in records appraisal.
9.30 Historic Buildings And Districts

See Schedule 1 Landmark and Historic Designations.
9.40 Historical Society

See Schedule 7 External Groups and Agencies.

® The following types of records are usually considered to have permanent archival value: annual reports
audit reports, brochures, court dockets older than 1920, directives, handbooks, histories, indexes,
interviews, legal opinions, minutes, resolutions, organizational charts, photographs, policy manuals,
procedure manuais, publications, regulations, research reports, rules, speeches, special studies,
statistical summaries, records older than 1900. Many of these records are listed in other schedules for
permanent retention.

68



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

9.50 Organization Records
Records relating to the organization of the district.
Retention: Permanent
9.60 Landmarks
See Schedule 1 Landmark and Historic Designations.
9.70 Logo - Special District
See Schedule @ Seal and Logo of the district.
9.80 News Clippings
See Schedule 9 Scrapbooks.
9.90 Newspapers - Local

Newspapers of the locality or region that have been preserved in the special district office for
reference or informational purposes.

Retention: Not considered to be a district record; however, older coliections of local newspapers
may have historical interest to the Colorado Historical Society, local historical society or other
historic preservation groups. Contact the Colorado State Archives regarding disposition of these
newspapers.

9.100 Photographic Records With Historical Value

Photographs, negatives, prints, digital images, slides, archival slide shows with sound tracks,
videos, motion pictures of historical interest to the special district.

Retention: Permanent
9.110 Records Older Than 1900

Records of any type in the cusiody of the district that are dated prior to 1900 and that may have
historical or archival value.

Retention: Contact Colorado State Archives regarding preservation and disposition
9.120 Scrapbooks

Chronological record of the special district or individual district departments which may include
photographs, newspaper clippings and other items pertaining to the district's activities and actions
and the reactions of citizens.

69



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent
9.130 Seal, Lago And Other Infellectual Property Records

Records relating to special district's owned copyrights, trademarks, service marks, seals, logos,
taglines and other similar intellectual property.

Retention: Permanent

70






RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 10

INFRASTRUCTURE RECORDS

General Description: Records pertaining to the provision of basic infrastructure and underlying public
works services and systems that provide the foundation for the special district. The specified retention
period applies to the information contained within the record, regardless of the physical format of the
record (paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape, optical disk, efc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be refained fonger than the record copy.

10.10 Communications Systems

Records pertaining to community-wide communications systems, including cable felevision and
telephone service. See Schedule 5 Franchise Records; Schedule 6 Communications Sysfem
Licenses and Telephone Systern — Buildings; Schedule 12 Permit Records — Comimunication
Tower Permits and Encroachment Permits; and Schedule 16 Easemenis and Rights-of-Way.

10.20 Electricity Service

Records relating to the provision of electrical service to the community and its residenis. See
Schedule 5 Franchise Records and Ulility Billing; and Schedule 7 Agreements and Contracts.

10.30 Encroachments - Utility Lines
See Schedule 12 Permit Records — Encroachment Permits.
10.40 Enterprise Board Records
See Schedule 8 Govemning Body as Another Decision-Making Body.
10.50 Franchises
See Schedule 5 Franchise Records.
10.60 Gas Service

Records pertaining to the provision of natural gas service to residents of the special district. See
Schedule 5 Franchise Records; Schedule 7 Agreements and Contracts; and Schedufe 12 Permits
— Encroachment Permits.

10.90 Maps And Drawings

71



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Maps, plans and drawings created by the district or its contractor(s) for district use, including
system schematics, "as-built” drawings, topegraphic and planemetric maps, ete. See also
Schedule 7 Maps and Drawings.

Retention: Permanent for final versions

Dupiicate Copies: Until no longer needed for reference
10.100 Policies And Procedures

See Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Documentation.
10.110 Project Records

See Schedule 7 Project Files.
10.120 Railroad Records

Special District Operations on Railroad Right-of-Way

Records of license agreements, right-of-way agreements or other transactions for the district's
use of the railroad right-of-way for utility line installation or other purposes.

Retention: Permanent
Railroad Crossings

Crossing plans and drawings, PUC/CDOT public hearings and rulings, reports and studies,
accident records, corrective actions in relation to State inspection reports and similar
documentation.

Retention: Permanent
Railroad Systems

Records pertaining to railroad systems, routes, regulations and rights-of-way for railways
operating within the district.

Retention: Permanent
10.130 Regulations

See Schedule 7 Regulations and Standards.
10.140 Rights-Of-Way And Easements

See Schedule 16 Easements and Rights-of-Way.

72



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

10.150 Solid Waste Management

Records pertaining to landfills operated by the district. See also Schedule 5§ Accounts Receivable
for cash receipts for trash hauling etc.

Dump Tickets

Retention: 3 years

Landfill Locations

Retention: Permanent

Landfili Monitoring — Surrounding Jurisdictions

See Schedule 11 Environmental Records.
10.160 Standards

See Schedule 7 Regulations and Standards.
10.170 State Highway System Records

Records regarding street maintenance contract with Colorado Department of Transportation and
other standards and policy issues relating to State highways within the district. See also Schedule
5 Government Revenue Programs and Schedule 10 Street and Traffic Operations Records.

Retention: Permanent
10.180 Stormwater Drainage System

Records relating to the management of stormwater run-off and drainage, flooding and storm
drainage basins. See Schedule 7 Project Files and Regulations and Standards and Schedule 11
Floodplain Records.

10.190 Street And Traffic Operations Records
Records documenting the ongoing street system and traffic flow operations of the district.
Colorado Department of Transportation Projects

Records of roadway and signalization improvement projects on State highways located within the
district. See also Schedule 10 State Highway System Records.

Retention: 6 years + current after project completion

Encroachments

73



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

See Schedule 12 Permit Records.

High Accident Locations

Records documenting accidents at locations that have a relatively high accident rate.
Retention: 6 years + current

Projects

See Schedule 7 Project Files.

Snow Removal

Records relating to the designation of snow routes, snow removal policies, and snow and ice
removal programs.

Retention: 2 years after superseded

Street Cuts

See Schedule 12 Permit Records — Permits to Work in Public Way.
Street Lighting Files

Records relating to street lighting improvements, maintenance and repairs on district streets and
roadways.

Retention: 6 years + current

Street and Drainage Problem History Files

See Schedule 10 Street Engineering Records.

Street Cleaning Records

Retention: 2 years + current

Traffic Marking and Signalization Files

Records documenting traffic marking and signalization projects.
Retention: 6 years + current

Truck Route Designations

Retention: 2 years after superseded

74



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Weather Observation Records

Data and reports relating to weather conditions impacting street and traffic operations.
Retention: Permanent

10.200 Street Engineering Records

Records documenting the layout and planning of streets, intersections and sidewalks, street
address assignments, establishment of grades, major street construction and maintenance, street
and intersection design and alignment, right-of-way acquisition, street and drainage problem
histories and similar records of long-term significance. See also Schedule 1 Street Address and

House Number Assignments; Schedule 7 Maps and Drawings and Project Files, and Schedule 16
Easements and Righis-of-Way.

Retention: Permanent
Bench Mark Records

Recards of bench marks placed by the district or the U.S. Geological Survey to denote elevations
above sea level, including record books, maps, cards and other documentation that sets out
locations and monument numbers, elevation, description and related data.

Retention: Permanent

Street System Records

Documentation filed on or before December 31, 1953, with the State department of transportation
by the district certifying the total mileage of streets in the district street system, certification of
adoption and a map of the arterial street system, and documentation of subsequent changes in
total mileage and arterial mileage shown in an annual report [CRS 43-2-125 and 43-2-132].

Retention: Permanent
10.210 Studies And Reports
See Schedule 7 Studies, Plans and Reports.
10.230 Traffic Operations Records
See Schedule 10 Strect and Traffic Operafions Records.

10.240 Transportation System Records

Records pertaining to the operation of district or privately owned transportation systems that
serve district residents, such as taxicab service, bus system and paratransit service, etc.

Retention: 6 years + current

75



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Route Maps
Bus and paratransit transportation system route maps.
Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Until superseded
10.250 Utility Features
Inclusion/Exclusion Review Records — Utility and Other Infrastructure
See 11.15, Inclusion/Exclusion Review Records.
As-Built Drawings

Final versions of as-built drawings for sewer, water and plant lines and facilittes. See also 7. 180,
Maps and Drawings.

Retention: Permanent

Development Review Records — Utility and Other Infrastructure
See 11.45, Development Review Records.

Disconnection Records

Records documenting the disconnection of properties from district water, sewer, power or similar
utility systems.

Retention: Permanent
Installation and Connection

Records documenting installation of district utility systems or the connection of properties to
water, sewer, power or similar utility systems. See also Water and Sewer Distribution and
Storage System Records — Tap and Connection Records.

Retention: 2 years after disconnection, provided record of disconnection is retained permanently
Locates

Documentation of request and district action to locate underground lines in vicinity of a
construction site.

Retention: 2 years
Locations

76



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Drawings, maps, charts, indexes, plats and other documentation showing the location of utility
features such as manholes, valves, shutoffs, lines and mains etc.

Retention: Permanent
Duplicate Copies: Until superseded
10.290 Water And Sewer Distribution And Storage System Records

Records relating to the operation of the district's water and sewer distribution and storage
systems.

Agreements — Service
See Schedule 7 Agreements and Contracls.
Backflow Prevention Device Test Records

Documentation of test results on backflow prevention devices designed to protect the district
water system from pollution related to substances backing into water lines.

Retention: 10 years
Cross-Connection Control Survey Records

Documentation of monitoring of potential or actual water system health hazards from pollution
entering water pipes from other pipes, including address, description of protection, corrections
made etc.

Retention: 1 year after disconnection or 10 years, whichever is later
Easements and Rights-of-Way

See 16.60, Easements and Rights-of-Way.

Emergency Plans

See 17.50.A, Emergency Operations and Management Plans.
Maps and Drawings

See 7.180, Maps and Drawings and Supporting Documentation.
Meter Records

See Schedule 5 Utility Bilfing.

Oversizing Project Records

77



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

See 7.280, Project Files.

Projects — Distribution System Improvements

See Schedule 7 Project Fifes.

Sewer Inspection and Testing Records

Records of inspections to locate problems and defects so that corrective measures can be taken.
Retention: 10 years or until superseded, whichever is shorter

Sewer Smoke Test Records

Documentation of smoke tests undertaken to verify hookup to main sewer lines, check condition
of pipes or determine effectiveness of backflow prevention devices.

Retention: 10 years
Sewer Test Records

Documentation of smoke, X-ray and other tests undertaken to verify hookup to main sewer lines,
check condition of pipes or determine effectiveness of backflow prevention devices.

Retention: 10 years after completion of test
Video Inspection Records

Records of video inspections to [ocate problems and defects so that corrective measures can be
taken.

Retention: Until after the next video inspection, then evaluate prior to destruction of the records
to determine ongoing value

Tap and Connection Records

Records regarding the application for and issuance of water and sewer tap permits and
connections between specific properties and the district utility systems. See also Schedule 10
Utifity Features.

Outside Users Tap Records
Retention: 2 years after disconnection, provided record of disconnection is retained permanently
Sewer Tap Permits

Retention: 2 years after disconnection, provided record of disconnection is retained permanently

78



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Water Tap Permits

Retention: 2 years after disconnection, provided record of disconnection is retained permanently

Utility Billing Records

See 5.380, Utility Billing.

Utility Lines

See Schedule 10 Utility Features.
Valve Records

Records documenting installation, locations and maintenance of valves in the district water and
sewer systems.

Locations

Retention: Permanent

Maintenance and Repair

Retention: 2 years

Specifications

Retention: Until valve is permanently removed from service
Water Consumption Reports

Compilations of statistics documenting daily water consumption.
Annual Reports

Retention: Permanent

Information Summarized in Annual Reports

Retention: 1 year + current

Water Distribution and Production System Records
Analysis of Sysfem

Retention: 2 years + current

79



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Flow Measurements

Data regarding water flows collected from recording stations in streams or wells.
Retention: 1 year

Reports — Distribution and Production Systems

Retention: Permanent

Water Conservation Records

Records of activities that promote and coordinate the efficient use of water resources within the
special district; i.e., educational and outreach efforts, reports, efc. See also 72.290.P.8, Water
Use Restriction Records.

Retention: 5 years + current, then evaluate for continuing value prior to destruction of records
Water Line Maintenance and Repair Records

Documentation of maintenance and repair of district owned water lines,
Records Requiring Engineering Stamp

Retention: 2 years after water line permanently removed from service
Other Records

Retention: 2 years

Water Pressure Measurements

Retention: 6 years + current

Water Storage Inspection Reports

Retention: 6 years + current

Water System Inspection and Testing Records

Video Inspection Records

Records of video inspections to locate problems and defects so that corrective measures can be
taken.

Retention: Until after the next video inspection, then evaluate prior to destruction of records to
determine ongoing value

80



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Water System Test Records

Documentation of tests undertaken to verify connections, check condition of pipes, etc.
Retention: 10 years after completion of test

Water Use Restriction Records

Complaints and Supporting Documentation

See 7.80 Complaints, Routine Service Requests and Nonbinding Petitions.

Notices of Restrictions

Notices of water use restrictions imposed by the special district because of resfrictions on water
supply.

Retention: 1 year + current
10.300 Water And Sewer Treatment System Records
Records relating to the treatment of water or sewage at district owned and operated facilities.

Analytical Reports

Records relating to analysis of samples taken from various locations throughout the system and
from raw and processed sources of supply.

Bacferiological Quality Analysis

Samples collected for labaratory testing for various contaminants that are naturally present in the
environment.

Retention: 5 years + current [40 CFR 141.33]
Chemical and Radiological Analysis

Verifications of water quality at various sampling points to determine the presence of
radionuclides from the decay of natural and manmade deposits and the erosion of natural
deposits.

Retention; 10 years + current [40 CFR 141.33]
Chiorination Reports

Retention: 10 years + current

Lead and Copper Analysis

81



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Tests to determine the ievels of lead and copper resulting from the corrosion of household
plumbing systems, the erosion of natural deposits and leaching from wood preservatives.

Retention: 12 years + current [40 CFR 141 91]
Secondary Contaminants

Tests to determine the levels of inorganic and vofatile organic contaminants.
Retention: 10 years + current {40 CFR 141.33]
Sewage Plant Composite Samples
Retention: 5 years + current [40 CFR 141.33]
Sewage Tests — Weekly

Retention: 5 years + current [40 CFR 141 .33]
Water Test Standards

The district's standards for water testing.
Retention: 5 years + current

Water Turbidity Reports

Documentation of analysis of water samples to determine level of cloudiness caused by
suspended particles resulting from soil runoff.

Retention: 10 years + current

Annual Reports

Reports created on annual basis documenting water and wastewater treatment operations.
Retention: Permanent

Consumer Confidence Report

Annual report delivered to consumers as required by the National Primary Drinking Water
Reguiations.

82



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent’
Corrective Actions — Noncompliance

Documentation of actions taken by the district to correct violations of primary drinking water
regulations.

Discharge Permits and Monitoring

Documentation of pollufion and effluent discharged from the special district wastewater treatment
facilities and reports submitted in conjunction with permit compliance; permits issued under the
Clean Water Act to the special district by the Colorado Department of Public Health &
Environment or Environmental Protection Agency/National Pollution Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) for discharge of freated sewage under controlled conditions.

Inspection Records

Documentation of annual inspections of wastewater freatment operations to monitor compliance
with NPDES permit conditions.

Retention: Permanent [40 CFR 122.2]
Odor Complaints
Retention: 2 years + current
Permits
Refention: Permanent [40 CFR 122.2]
Supporting Documentation
Reiention: 5 years + current
Equipment
Maintenance and Calibration Records

Documentation of maintenance and calibration of equipment and instruments used in
testing and monitoring of water and wastewater treatment operations.

Retention: Life of equipment

* 40 CFR 141.155 establishes a minimum retention pericd of 3 years for this report; however, permanent
retention is specified in the model retention schedule because of the historical value of this annual report.

83



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Sand Trap Inspections
Retention: Life of equipment
Industrial Pretreatment Permits

Permits and permit modifications issued by the district to private industries allowing the discharge
of specific pollutants under controlled conditions.

Retention: Permanent
Operator Records

Records of certifications and training for water and wastewater operating personnel. See
Schedule 15 Employee Records.

Operational Reports
Filter Plant Logs
Daily information regarding plant operations.
Retention: 5 years + current
Plant Capacity Records
Retention: 1 year + current
Projects — Treatment System Improvements
See Schedule 7 Project Files.
Sanitary Surveys of System

Written reports, summaries and communications by the district, its agents or State and Federal
agencies.

Retention: 10 years [40 CFR 141.33]
Sludge Application Records

Documentation of placement of approved sites and the surface application of sewage sludge to
approved sites.

Domestic Septage Application

Retention: 5 years [40 CFR 503.17]

84



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Permits
Retention: 6 years after expiration
Preparation and Application of Sludge

Records relating to preparation of sewage sludge and the application by the district of sewage
sludge to approved sites.

Retention: 5 years [40 CFR 503.17]
Surface Disposal Site Placement

Retention: By person who prepares the sludge, for as long as sewage sludge remains on the land
[40 CFR 503.20]

Variances and Exemptions

Retention: 5 years after expiration [40 CFR 141.33]

Water Meter Reading Sheets

See Schedule 5 Utility Billing.

Water Quality Studies

See Schedule 7 Studies, Plans and Reports,
10.310 Water Source Of Supply Records

Records pertaining to source of supply of raw (untreated) water for the district, including records
relating to adjudication, acquisition, dedication and transfer of water shares and water resources
and records relafing to the district's water storage system.

Acquisition, Sale and Transfer Records

Records relating to the district's acquisition, sale or transfer of water rights, including water
acquisition agreements, dedication of water rights by developers to meet development
requirements, court proceedings, water decrees and other similar transactions.

Retention: Permanent

Water Offers

Records relating to water offers made to the special district and offers from the special district
relating to the rental or purchase of water from others.

Retention: Until offer is accepted or rejected

85



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Ditch Records

Records relating to gauging station and visual monitoring of ditch flows and conditions.
Retention: Life of ditch + 1 year

Irrigation (Ditch) Company Records

Water stock assessments and seasonal rental of surplus irrigation water.

Retention: 6 vears + current

Reservoir, Dam and Lake Records

Records relating to the construction, repair and maintenance, monitoring and capacity of district
owned and controlled water storage reservoirs, dams and lakes.

Retention: Permanent
Construction and Capacity Records

Records relating to the consfruction, repair and maintenance and capacity of district owned and
controlled water storage reservoirs, dams and lakes. See also 7.280, Project Files.

Retention: Life of reservoir, dam or lake + 1 year

Dam Monitoring and Inspection Records

Dam safety inspections and monitoring data and reports,
Retention: Life of dam + 1 year

River and Stream Records

Augmentation plans, river flow observations, adjudication of priorities of use and similar records
relating to surface water rights.

Retention: Permanent
Flow Measurements

Data reported to the State Engineer's Office regarding water flows, collected from recording
stations in streams or wells.

Retention: 1 year

Hydrologic Data — Rivers and Streams

86



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Raw data collected from field gauging stations established to monitor river and stream flows
diverted by special districts.

Retention: 5 years + current, provided that data is compiled into a report that is retained
permanently

Surface Water Rights Records

Augmentation plans, river flow observations, adjudication of priorities of use and similar records
relating to surface water rights.

Retention: Permanent

Studies and Reports

See Schedule 7 Studies, Plans and Reports.

Underground Water Rights and Supply

Records relating to underground aquifers, water wells and similar records.
Retention: Permanent

Water Associations

See Schedule 7 External Groups and Agencies.

Water Conservancy Districts

Records relating to temporary use permits and cancellations and permanent allotment contracts
for the use of water through agencies such as the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District
{(NCWCD).

Retention: Permanent

Water Court Records

See 10.310.A, Acquisition, Sale and Transfer Records.
Water Decree Accounting

Records retained as required by the State Engineer or Water Court to track the use of water
under a decree.

Retention: Permanent

Water Modeling and Forecasting Records

87



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records relating to projections of future water needs and supplies for the special district.
Reiention: Permanent
Water Policies, Regulations and Standards

Records pertaining to district policies, standards and regulations regarding issues such as the
dedication of water rights or cash in-lieu-of water rights, water metering, rate adjustments, plant
investment fees, water quality, raw water rental, water conservation, etc. See also Schedule 7
Regulations and Standards and Policies and Procedures Documentation.

Retention: Permanent

Water Quality Monitoring Records

Biological Protection Plans

See 7.380, Studies, Plans and Reporis.
Environmental Audits and Biological Assessments

Records of environmental and biological audits, assessments and studies relating to water quality
monitoring of the special district's watershed.

Retention: 30 years

Water Quality Modeling and Forecasting Records

Analyses of future water quality issues and projections of possible water quality scenarios.
Reiention: Permanent

Water Quality Studies

See 7.380, Studies, Plans and Reports.

Water Rental or Leasing Records

Records relating to water stock assessments and seasonal rental of surplus irrigation water by
the special district.

Retention: 6 years + current
Water Stock Certificates
Documents issued to the district by water companies as proof of an ownership interest in the

company.

88



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent

Weather Records

Weather Modification Records

Records of cloud seeding projects conducted by the special district or its agents.
Retention: Permanent

Weather Observation Records

Reports on weather, river, snow pack and climatological observations affecting water supply.
Retention: Permanent

Woeather Sensor Calibration and Testing Records

Documentation of testing and calibration of district weather sensors to ensure accuracy
Refention: Life of equipment + 1 year

Well Location Records

Records pertaining to adjudication, installation, testing and use of water wells and abandonment
of water wells.

Retention: Permanent
Well Permits

Records pertaining to the application and approval process for permits for drilling and use of
water wells for district water supply uses.

Retention: Permanent

89



e TG L L e

e

kY



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 11

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND PLANNING RECORDS

General Description: Records pertaining to inclusions, exclusions, consolidations and other boundary

issues, developments, land uses, etc. The specified retention period applies to the information contained

within the record, regardless of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape,
oplical disk, etc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no fonger needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

11.10 Inclusion, Exclusion and Consolidation Case Files

11.15

Records documenting changes to the special district boundaries, including petitions, agreements,
copies of resolutions, maps, permanent correspondence, etc. See also Schedule 3 Pelitions —
Inclusion/Exclusion Election Petitions.

Retention: Permanent, except follow Schedule 7 for purging of routine correspondence and
documentation such as transmittal memos without substantive confent, hearing notices, affidavits
of publication, efc.

Inclusions, Exclusion and Consolidation Review Records

Records pertaining to district review of various aspects of proposed boundary changes; i.e., traffic
impacts, infrastructure and utility impacts, financial benefits and impacts, support services
impacts, environmental impacts, etc. See also 771.10, inclusions, Exclusions and Consolidation
Case Files.

Retention: Permanent

Duplicate Capies: Until no longer needed for reference

11.20 Census and Population Records

Census and Population Data (Historical}

Summary population estimates, statistics and supporting documentation pertaining to the ten-
ysar census relating to the district and census surveys performed by the district, if any

Retention: Permanent
Census Forms and Reports

Copies of U.S. Census Bureau forms and voluntary surveys on government employment and
local government tax revenues, used to meet the requirements for Federal Revenue Sharing and
to make financial information available to the public; annual survey of government employees,

90



11.45

RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

boundary and invludiond survey and similar reports. See also Schedule 1 Reports — Building
Activity.

Retention; 3 years

Population Studies

See Schedule 7 Studies, Plans and Reports.
Development Review Records

Records relating to district reviews of various aspects of proposed development within the district
(for example, urban renewal projects}; i.e., traffic impacts, infrastructure and utility impacts,
financial benefits and impacts, support services impacts, environmental impacts, etc.

Retention: Permanent

Duplicate Copies: Until no longer needed for reference

11.70 Environmental Records

Environmental Monitoring and Reviews

Records pertaining to local and regional permit and application reviews, monitoring, inspections,
investigations, surveys, screenings, testing and similar activities by the district of land uses and
activities that could potentially impact air quality, water supply and the environment, such as
feedlot operations, industrial contamination and pollution, mosquito control, gravel pit and mined
land reclamation, oil and gas well drilling, sludge application by other jurisdictions, landfill
locations, etc. See also Schedule 10 Solid Waste Management and Water and Sewer Treatment
System Records; Schedule 17 Hazardous Materials.

Retention: Permanent
Nuisance Abatement Records

Records documenting district compliance with of local ordinances designed fo abate nuisances
such as overgrown weeds and grass, abandoned vehicles, junk and trash and other nuisances.

Retention: 2 years after action
Storage Tanks ~ Regulated Substances

Records related to storage and use of regulated substances such as gasoline, crude oif, fuel oil
and diesel oil, including applications, permits, inspection reports and related records.

Above Ground Storage Tanks

Retention: 5 years

91



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Underground Storage Tanks
Retention: 25 years after tank removed
Toxic Sites (Designated)

Records related to the identification and designation of a site that may have toxic materials
contaminating it.

Retention: Permanent
Wetlands

Protection

Records relating to protection and management of wetlands on district property or rights-
of-way.

Retention: Permanent
Removal and Fill
Retention: 30 years
11.80 Fee Receipts
See Schedule 5 Accounts Receivable Records.
11.90 Floodplain Records
Basin and Floodway Records

Records documenting the existence of designated and recognized stormwater basins and
floodways within the district, including maps and drawings depicting locations and FEMA flaod
insurance rate maps. See also Schedule 7 Maps and Drawings.

Retention: Permanent
Flooding Records

Records documenting the [ocations, extent and levels of flooding and subsequent mitigation
efforts in the district. See also Schedufe 10 Stormwater Drainage System.

Retention: Permanent

Floodplain Building Permits

92



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Permits issued fo the District for construciion within a floodplain area, including elevation
certificates, applications, review records, and related documentation. See Schedule 1 Building
and Demolition Permits.

Floodplain Regulations

See Schedule 7 Regqulations and Standards.

Wetlands

See Schedufe 11 Environmental Records.
11.100 Maps, Plats and Plans

Reproducible linen or Mylar originals [or best copy] of inclusions and exclusions, subdivisions,
master plans, planned unit developments, site plans, overall development plans, replats, zoning
district plans, etc. See also Schedule 7 Maps and Drawings.

Retention: Permanent

Duplicate Copies: Until no longer needed for reference

14.110 Nuisances
See Schedule 11 Environmental Records.
11.130 Plans, Studies and Reports

Documents prepared in-house or externally regarding regional and locat planning, strategic or
long-range planning or growth for the district, such as comprehensive land use plans, urban
growth area plans, stormwater basin plans, transportation plans, utility plans, economic
development plans, streetscape plans, corridor plans, housing plans, etc. See also Schedule 7
Studies, Plans and Reporis.

Retention: Permanent
11.149 Referrals from Other Jurisdictions

Advisory deliberations referred to the district from the county or other surrounding jurisdictions for
review and recommendation.

Direct Interest to the District
Retention: 6 years provided it is reviewed before destroying
Other Referrals

Retention: Until no longer needed for reference

93



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

11.180 Violations — Covenant Envorcement
Land Use Violations

Records of violations of land use or related codes. See also Schedule 14 Case Files — Code
Enforcement Cases.

Retention: 5 years + current
Nuisances
See Schedufe 11 Environmental Records.

Weed and Trash Violations

Records of district actions to enforce the district's weed and frash removal ordinances. See also
Schedule 11 Environmental Records.

Retention: 2 years + current

11.190 Zoning Records
Records pertaining to the initial zoning or the rezoning of property within the district.
Initial Zoning

Records documeniing the zoning of land upen inclusion or the initial establishment of zoning
districts within the district, including correspondence of enduring value, zoning ordinances of the
county or municipality, zoning maps and zoning petitions. See also Schedule 11
Inclusion/Exclusion Case Fifes.

Retention: Permanent, except follow Schedule 7 for purging of routine correspondence and

documentation such as transmittal memos without substantive content, hearing nofices, affidavits
of publication, etc.

Zoning Certificates

Documentation issued by the municipality or county regarding the zoning classification for a
parcel of property in the special district.

Retention: Permanent

24



o0t s i e T g c



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 12

LICENSES AND PERMITS

General Description: Records pertaining to the review, investigation, approval, issuance, renewal, denial,
suspension or revocation of licenses and permits for regulated activities. The specified retention period
applies to the information contained within the record, regardless of the physical format of the record
{paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape, optical disk, etc.}.

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no refention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

12.10 Bonds - Licenses And Permits

Bonds required to be filed with the district befare a license or permit (such as house moving, tree
trimming, street cutting etc.) can be issued or renewed.

Retention: § years + current after expiration

12.15 Licenses Issued To The District

Licenses and supporting documentation for licenses issued to the special district by other entities
as evidenice that the special district is allowed to undertake some type of activity for which a
license is required.

Project-Related

See 7.280.A, Capital Projects

Routine Licenses Not Related to Capital Projects
Retention: 1 year + current after expiration

12.30 Permit Records

Documentation issued by the district as evidence that the bearer is allowed to undertake some
type of activity for which a permit is required.

Burning Permits

Permits issued by the district to individuals, or to the district by other agencies, to allow open
buming on specified days.

Retention: 1 year + current, unless connected with an investigation

Communication Tower Permits

95



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 2 years + current after removal of tower
Encroachment Permits

Permits issued by the district to allow the permanent or [ong-term location of communication,
utility or other installations under or over public rights-of-way or publicly owned property. See aiso
Permits to Work in Public Way below.

Retention: Permanent

Excavation Permits

Retention: 2 years + current

Facility Permits

Documentation issued by the district to allow access to and use of a district facility.
Retention: 1 year + current

Fence Permits

Retention: 2 years + current

Fire Alarm System Permits

Retention: 2 years + current

Industrial Pretreatment Permits

See Schedufe 10 Water and Sewer Treatment Sysfem Records.
Permits to Work in Public Way

Permits issued for private use or construction on district right-of-way ("public way") such as
streets, sidewalks or adjacent land for demolitions, excavations, street cuts, blasting, crane
operations, barricade installations, concrete construction (curb, gutter sidewalks) or the moving of
heavy equipment or houses. See also Encroachment Permits above.

Retention: 2 years + current after expiration, revocation or discontinuance of use
Sewer Tap Permits

See Schedule 10 Water and Sewer Distribution and Storage System Records.
Sludge Application Permits

See Schedule 10 Water and Sewer Treatment System Records.

96



12.35

RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Special Events and Use Permits

Retention: 1 year + current

Street Cut Permits

Retention: 1 year + current after expiration of warranty period
Telephone Company Permits

See Encroachment Permits above.

Underground Storage Tank Permits

Records that document installation, maintenance and remaoval of underground storage tanks for
regulated substances such as gasoline and fuel oil. See also Schedule 11 Environmental
Records — Storage Tanks — Regulated Substances.

Denied Permits

Retention: 3 years + current after final action

Issued Permits

Retention: Permanent

Use Permits

Permits issued by the district for various special or temporary uses.

Retention: 1 year + current

Water Tap Permits

See Schedule 10 Water and Sewer Distribution and Storage System Records.
Permits Issued To The District

Permits and supporting documentation for permits issued to the special district by other entities
as evidence that the special district is allowed to undertake some type of activity for which a
permit is required.

Project-Related
See 7.280.A, Capital Projects.

Routine Permits Not Related to Capital Projects

97



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 1 year + current after expiration
12.40 Registers - Licenses And Permits
Records, listings or logs of issuance of licenses or permits by the special district,
Retention: Permanent
Contact Lists — Licensees

Retention: Until superseded

98



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 13

LITIGATION AND LEGAL COUNSEL RECORDS

General Description: Records pertaining to claims, lawsuits and advice received from the special district's
legal counsel. The specified retention period applies to the information contained within the record,
regardiess of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape, optical disk, etc.}.

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

13.10 Attorney Correspondence

See Schedule 7 Correspondence and General Documentation.
13.20 Billings — Legal Counsel

See Schedufe 5 Accounts Payable Records.
13.30 Medical Records — P ersonal Injury Claims

Medical records that provide supporting documentation needed for resolution of personal injury
claims.

Retention: Until claim is resolved, then evaluate for continuing value prior to destruction
13.50 Garnishments

See Schedule 15 Payroll Records.
13.60 Legal Opinions

Formal opinions written by legal counsel {o advise the district, the governing body or district staff
regarding the legality or legal consequences of various courses of action and to present the basis
and rationale for legal recommendations.

Retention: Permanent
Advisory Opinion

Formal opinions written by legal counsel to advise the district, the governing body or district staff
regarding the possible legal consequences of varicus courses of action. <Added 1/03>

Retention: 6 years

13.70 Litigation Case Records

99



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Civil case files documenting pending and closed cases filed by the district and against the special
district, including legal documents, notes, reports, background material, settlement records and
other documentation creafed in handling of claims and legal disputes and civil actions between
the district and other parties. These records will include documentation such as complaints,
summonses, investigations, reports, attorney's notes, photographs, orders and judgments,
dispositions, pleadings and related records. Litigation records include any court decisions
affecting the district, court proceedings, research files of legal counsel, litigation case files, and
Public Utilities Commission hearing files for cases pertinent to the special district.

Major Litigation

Documentation of civil suits by the district against another party or in defense of the district and/for
its employees against suits filed by another party. Records of litigation that sets legal precedents,
that has widespread importance or long-term major significance to the district and how it
operates, that has historical interest or that is perceived by the district or legal counsel fo have
enduring reference value.

Retention: Permanent
Minor Litigation

Dacumentation of civil suits of a minor nature by the district against another party or in defense of
the special district and/or its employees against suits filed by another party; records of litigation
with relatively short-term reference value.

Retention: 7 years after case closed, dismissed or date of last action unless there is historical
value

100



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE 14,

Reserved

101




SRELY



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 15

PERSONNEL RECORDS

General Description: Records relating to the hiring, employment, safety, benefits, compensation,
retirement and termination of district employees. The specified refention period applies fo the information

contained within the record, regardless of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer
disk or tape, optical disk, efc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

15.10 Affirnative Action Records
See Schedule 15 Compliance with Regulatory Requirements.

15.20 Agreements And Contracts - Personnel

Agreements resulting from collective bargaining negotiations and supporting documentation such
as general correspondence; records relating to the selection of negotiators, mediators and
arbitrators; negotiation session agendas, notes, recordings and summaries, etc.

Collective Bargaining Agreements and Agreements
Retention: 3 years after expiration [29 CFR 516.5]

Employment Contracts

Individual employment contracts or where contracts or agreements are not in writing, a written
memorandum summarizing the terms.

Retention: 3 years after expiration [29 CFR 51 6.5]

15.30 Americans With Disability Act Records

See Schedule 15 Compliance with Regulatory Requirements.

15.40 Benefits Records

Records pertaining to fringe benefits, insurance coverage and benefit plans for employees.

Group Health Insurance — Continuation of Coverage

102



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records showing that covered employees, their spouses and dependents have received written
notice of continuing group health insurance and COBRA?® rights, and whether the covered
employees, spouses and dependents elected or rejected coverage.

Retention: 3 years + current °®

Records pertaining to fringe benefits, insurance coverage and benefit plans for employees.
Retention: 3 years + current

Benefit Plans

Documentation relating to employee health, dental, vision and other insurance plans; Social
Security, pension, deferred compensation, Individual Retirement Accounts, money purchase
plans, retirement and similar plans; including a benefit plan description andfor a summary benefit
plan description.

Retention; Fult period that plan or system is in effect, plus 1 year after termination of the plan [29
CFR 1627.3]"

Benefit Reports

Reports detailing the status of employee benefits, such as the amount of flex time remaining.
Retention: 3 years + current

Employee Insurance Claims

See 5.240.D, Employee Insurance Claim Records.

Plan Basis

Records providing the basis for all required plan descriptions and reporis necessary fo certify the
information, including vouchers, worksheets, receipts, applicable resolutions.

Retention: Not less than 6 years after filing date of documents [28 USC 1027 and 29 CFR 2520]
15.50 Bonds - Public Officials

Fidelity, surety, blanket or other bonds intended to guarantee honest and faithful performance of
officials such as district board members or the treasurer [CRS 32-1-901, CRS 32-1-902].

Retention: 6 years + current after term expires

* COBRA means Consolidated Omnibus Budget Recongiliation Act of 1985
5 Retention period not specified in federal law 26 CFR 4980 B (f)(6) or 29 USC 1166
7 GRMRC F-19 and P-17 specify permanent retention for pension plans

103



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

15.60 Compliance With Regulatory Requirements

Affirmative Action Compliance

Records relating to the special district's compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act [28 CFR
1602).

Affirmative Action Plan
Retention: Permanent
Affirmative Action Records

Records of requests for job applicant's reasonable accommodation applications, hiring,
promotion, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, rates of pay, selections for training or
apprenticeship.

Retention: 2 years® [29 CFR 1602.31]
Report EEQO-4

Records submitted to the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) documenting
compliance with EEOC requirements by special disiricts with 15 or more employees.

Retention: 3 years [29 CFR 1602.30; 29 CFR 1602.32)
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance
See Schedule 15 FPhysical and Medical Records.
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA) Compliance
See Schedule 15 Benefits — Group Health Insurance — Continuation of Coverage.
Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA} Compliance
See Schedule 15 Physical and Medical Records.
Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) Compliance
See Schedule 15 Physical and Medical Records.
15.65 Driver's License Verifications

Records of periodic checks by the municipality that employees have the appropriate valid drivers'
licenses

8 GRMRC P-4 specifies 5 years + current; 29 CFR 1602.14 specifies 1 year

104



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Until completion of subsequent verification, or until separation from employment,
whichever comes first

15.70 Employee Records - Active And Terminated

Documentation of an individual employee's work history, including information regarding active
and terminated employees maintained because of the employer-employee relationship, such as
records pertaining to age, address, telephone number and social security number; notices of
appointment; tuition reimbursement; classification questionnaires; commendations; disciplinary

and personnel actions relating to the employee, including hiring, evaluation, demotion, promotion

and termination of special district employees; letters of commendation; letters of resignation;
emergency notification forms; oaths of office; job-related training documentation; beneficiary

designations; performance evaluations; salary documentation; beneficiary designations: selection

of benefit plans, etc. [CRS 24-72-202(4.5)]. See also other employee and personnel records
listed elsewhere in Schedule 15.

Retention: 10 years after retirement or separation, provided that records relating to hazardous
material exposure are retained 30 years after separation.’

Duplicate Copies: Consult with custodian of record copy of special district employee records
regarding proper fransfer or disposal of departmental employee records upon termination of
employment

15.80 Employee Records - Temporary And Seasonal

Records and documentation relating to employment of temporary and seasonal employees,
except for payroll and fiscal information.

Retention: 3 years after termination, except payroll and fiscal records
15.85 Employment Verifications

Records of verification of employment in response to external requests (i.e., verifications for
employment status needed for loans, child support, job applications, efc.).

Retention: 1 years + current
15.90 Expense Records

See Schedule 5 Accounts Payable Records.

® Research notations: Age records, 3 years [29 CFR 516.2, 41 CFR 50.201, and 29 CFR 1627.3];
demotion records, 1 year [29 CFR 1627.3 and 29 CFR 16902.14]; hiring records, 3 years [29 CFR
1602.14 and 29 CFR 1627.3]; promotion records, 1 year from date record made or personnel action
taken, whichever is later [29 CFR 1602.14]; termination records, 1 year from date record made or
personnel action taken, whichever is later [29 CFR 1602.14); involuntary terminations, 2 years from date

of termination, or in cases of charges of discrimination retain until final disposition of charge or action [29

CFR 1602_31].

105



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

15.100 Garnishments
See Schedule 15 Payroll Records.
15.110 Grievances
Records of personne! grievances filed by employees.
Retention: 3 years + current after settled]
15,120 Health And Safety Records
See also Schedule 15 Physical and Medical Records and Workers' Compensation.
Hazardous Materials Exposure

Records of any personal or environmental monitoring of exposure to hazardous materials, lead
and asbestos, chemicals, toxic substances, noise, dust, heat, cold, repetitive motion, blood-bome

pathogens, biological agents, bacteria, virus, fungus, radiation, or other dangerous work-related
conditions.

Retention: 30 years after separation [28 CFR 1910.1020 and 15 USC 2622]

HIPPA Authorizations for Release of Information
Employee (patient) authorizations for release of protected information.

Retention: 6 years from date of creation of the record
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)

Employers must have a MSDS on file for each hazardous chemical they receive and use and
ensure copies are readily accessible to employees in their work area. Employer must keep
records of chemicals used, where they were used and for how long [28 CFR 1910.1200].

Retention: Until superseded or 1 year + current after chemical is disposed of or consumed,
provided the employer retains some record of the identity {chemical name if known) of the
substance or agent, where it was used, and when it was used for at least 30 years.

Safety Committee Records

See Schedule 7 Commitfees — Infernal.

Safety Policies and Procedures

See Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Documentation,

Safety Training Information

106



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Manuals, handbooks and similar documentation of safety training provided to employees.
Retention: 1 year + current
15.130 [-9 Forms

Record of verification of citizenship and eligibility to work in the United States, including
verification documentation that establishes identity and eligibility (Immigration and Naturalization
Services Form 1-9, Employment Eligibility Verification Form); applies to all employees hired after
November 6, 1986.

Retention: 3 years from date of hire or 1 year after separation, whichever is later [8 CFR 274a.2]
15.140 Insurance - Employee

See Schedule 15 Benefits and Schedule 5 Insurance Records.
15.150 Job Records

Advertisements of Job Opportunities

Advertisements and announcements regarding job openings, promotions, training programs or
overtime work,

Retention: 1 year + current [29 CFR 1627.3]
Applications for Employment and Supporting Documentation

Applications, resumes and supporting documentation and other replies to job advertisements,
including applications for temporary positions.

Retention: 2 years from the date record was made or hurnan resource action was taken,
whichever is later 29 CFR 1627 4, 29 CFR 1602.14

Applications for Employment — Not Hired

Applications, resumes and supporting documentation submitted for special district employment by
individuals not hired.

Retention: 2 years from the date of the making of the record or the personnel action involved,
whichever occurs later [29 CFR 1602.31]

Examinations

Tests administered by the special district in connection with screening job applicants to determine
aptitude or skills.

107



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Retention: 2 years + current from the date of making record or acfion, whichever occurs last [29
CFR 1602.31, 29 CFR 1627.3 and 29 CFR 1607 4]
Job Descriptions and Specifications

Written descriptions of duties performed, qualifications and physical requirements for district
positions.

Retention: Until superseded
Polygraph Records — Job Applicants
Retention: 2 years + current
Polygraph Records - Routine (Not Job Related)
Retention: Until administrative need ends
15.160 Oaths Of Office
Daths of office taken by elected or appointed district officials [CRS 32-1-901].
Retention: Term of office + 1 year
15.170 Payroll Records
Basis of Pay"

Records pertaining to additions or deductions from wages paid; the basis on which wages are
paid; earnings per week; records containing employee's name, address, date of birth, occupation,
rate of pay and compensation earned per week; includes payroll records pertaining to both FLSA-
Exempt and FLSA-Non-Exempt Employees.

Note: The basis on which wages are paid must be documented in sufficient detail to permit
calculation for each pay period including benefits and prerequisites. The records may include
payment of wages, wage rates, job evaluations, merit and incentive programs and seniority
systems. The basic reason for these records is to give the Wage-Hour Division an indication on
whether or not sex discrimination exists.

Retention: 3 years [29 CFR 516.5]

Compensation Plans

8 research notations: Additions or Deductions from Wages Paid, 3 years [29 CFR 516.5]; Age
Discrimination in Employment Act Records, 3 years [29 CFR 1627.3]; Basis on Which Wages Are Paid, 2
years [29 CFR 1620.32 and 29 CFR 516.6]; Earnings Per Week, 3 years [29 CFR 1627.3 and 29 CFR
516.5]; FLSA-Exempt Employees, 3 years [29 CFR 516.5]; FLSA-Non Exempt Employees, 3 years 29
CFR 516.5]; Title VIl and Americans with Disabilities Act, 1 year from date record made or personnel
action taken, whichever is later [29 CFR 1602.14].

108



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Pay Plans

Written plans outlining job titles and pay scales for district employees.

Retention: Permanent

Seniority or Merit Systems

Retention: For the full period the plan or system is in effect plus 1 year [29 CFR 1627.3]
Credit Union Deduction Requests

Retention: 1 year after superseded’

Direct Deposit Reports

Retention: 1 year + current

Employee Longevity Reports
Report related to individual employee.

Retention: 10 years after separation
Garnishments

Documentation of requests and court orders served on the special district to withhold the
wages of employees for garnishments, tax levies, support payments and other reasons.,

Retention: 3 years
Leave Records
Balance Reports
Year-End
Retention: Duration of employee file
Other Periodic Reports

Retention: 2 years

' 29 CFR 516.6 specifies retention for 2 years.

109



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Leave Requests

Applications submitted by employees for sick, vacation, compensatory, personal
business, family and medical leave, long-term leave and other leave time.

Retention: 1 year + current
Pay Plans
See Compensation Plans above.
Payroll Reports
Employee Longevity Reports
Retention: Permanent
End of Pay Period
Retention: 1 year + current
FICA Reports — Quarterly
Retention: 6 years + current
Quarterly
Retention: 2 years + current
Year-End
Retention: 6 years + current provided Payroll Register is retained permanently
Payroll Tax Records

Records of collection, distribution, deposit and fransmittal of federal and state income taxes,
including federal miscellaneous income statements (1099), request for taxpayer identification
number and certificate (W-9), employer's quarterly federal tax return (841, 941E) and other
similar federal and state forms.

Retention: 5 years + current
Register — Payroll [Year-End]

Documentation of the earnings, voluntary and required deductions and withholdings of district
employees.

Retention: Permanent

110



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Salary Surveys

Studies and surveys conducted by the district or its agents to gather comparative salary
information for district positions in comparable organizations.

Retention: 3 years + current
Time Worked Records

Al basic time and earnings cards or sheets and work production sheets of individuals where all or
part of the employee's earnings are determined.

Retention: 5 years + current [CRS 8-72-107]"2
Wage-Rate Tables

All tables or schedules (from their last effective date) of the employer which provide the piece
rates or other rates used in computing straight-time earnings, wages, or salary, or overtime pay
computation.

Retention: 2 years; however the Department of Labor may request records back 3 years [29 CFR
516.6]

W-2 Forms

Annual wage and tax statements documenting individual employee eamings and withholdings for
state and federal income taxes and social security tax.

Retention: 4 years + current
W-4 Forms
Withholding allowance certificates documenting exemption status of individual district employees.
Retention: Throughout employment
15.180 Pension Records
Actuarial Reports
Reports by actuaries concerning the financial soundness of a pension plan.
Retention: Permanent

Pensions Awarded

 GRMRC P-16, 29 CFR 1602.31 and 29 CFR 516.6 specify retention for 2 years. The model retention
schedule follows state law.

111



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records of applications for pensions, determinations regarding award of pensions and actuarial
calculations for the pension.

Retention: Permanent

Pension Plans

See Schedule 15 Benefits — Benefit Plans.
Retirement Files

Records containing calculations and supporting documentation regarding retirement eligibility,
retirement amounts and other information pertaining to current and potential future pensions.

Retention: 10 years after retirement benefits are no tonger paid or after eligibility for retirement
benefits ceases, whichever is later

15.190 Physical And Medical Records

Records documenting an individual employee's work-related medical history [29 CFR 1630.14].
Note: These records are not personnel records and must be kept physically separate from
employee personnel records in a separate location as required by the Americans with Disabilities
Act. See also Schedule 15 Health and Safety Records.

Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA) and Americans with Disabilities Act {ADA)
Records

Records required to be retained under Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA) and
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) containing results of physical examinations considered in
connection with personnel actions.

Retention: 1 year [29 CFR 1627.3]
Family and Medical L eave Act (FMLA) Records

Records required to be retained under Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA); includes an FMLA
feave request relating to medical certifications, recertification or medical histories of employees or
employees’ family members. These records shall be maintained in separate files/records and be
treated as confidential medical records, except that supervisors and managers may be informed
regarding necessary restrictions and accommodations, not the nature of the condition, first aid
and safety personnel may be informed (when appropriate} if the employee may/might require
emergency treatment, and government officials investigating compliance with FMLA shall be
provided relevant information.

Retention: 3 years [29 CFR 825.500]

Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) Records

112




RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records required under Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), including complete and
accurate records of all medical examinations required by OSHA law. Note: These records may be
retained by the medical provider.

Retention; Duration of employment + 30 years, unless a specific OSHA standard provides a
different time period [29 CFR 1910.1020]

15.200 Policies And Procedures - Personnel

Handbooks, manuals, directives and other written statements or summaries of policies and
procedures governing personnel and human resource matters pertaining to employment with the
special district. See also Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Docurmentation.

Retention: Until updated, except retain permanently all documentation that would be useful in
establishing past policies or procedures in settling personnel disputes

Recruitment and Interviewing Procedures
Guidelines for recruitment and interviewing processes for hiring of district employees.
Retention: 1 year + current
15.210 Regulatory Agency Information
See Schedule 7 Legislation and Regulatory Actions.
15.220 Reports - Personnel
See Schedule 15 Pension Records and Payroli Records.
15.230 Safety
See Schedule 15 Healih and Safefy Records.
15.240 Signature Certificates

Facsimile signature certificates of any authorized district officer that are filed with the Secretary of
State’s office for authentication and verification of the signature of the official on district
documents.[CRS 11-55-103]

Retention: 1 year after end of employment or board service

15.250 Social Security

See Schedule 15 Benefits — Benefit Plans.

15,260 Test Records

113



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL.

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

See Schedule 15 Job Records.
15.270 Training Information
Information presented to orient new employees regarding policies and procedures.
Retention: 1 year + current
15.280 Unemployment Insurance
Reports and claim records for unemployment insurance payments.
Retention: 6 years + current
15.290 Volunteer Worker Records

Records documenting work performed for the district by citizens without compensation for their
services.

Retention: 3 years after separation
15.300 Work Schedules

Employee On-Call Schedule

Retention: 2 years + current

15.310 Workers' Compensation

[njury reports and supplemental reports and claim records for workers' compensation. See also
5.240.E, Insurance Policies.

Retention: 6 years + current

114



N T PR R



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 16
PROPERTY RECORDS

General Description: Records of real property considered for acquisition or owned, sold or vacated by the
special district. The specified retention period applies to the information contained within the record,

regardiess of the physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape, optical disk, etc. )

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience
or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate copies
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

16.10 Acquisition Records

Records documenting the acquisition and ownership of real property by the district, including
appraisals, quiet title actions, condemnations and eminent domain actions, purchase of property
and similar actions to acquire land or real property.

Retention: Permanent
16.20 Auction Records

See Schedule 5 Fixed Asset Records.
46.30 Buildings And Structures - Special District

Records relating to acquisition, construction and sale of buildings and structures owned by the
special district.

Retention: 6 years after disposition of building or structure

16.50 Deeds And Dedications

Conveyances of property or property rights to or from the special district, including warranty
deeds, dedication deeds and similar documents.

Retention: Permanent
16.60 Easements And Rights-Of-Way
Permanent Easements and Rights-of-Way

Conveyances of rights to place utilities or other infrastructure or to cross under or over property
owned by another property owner.

Retention: Permanent

115



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Temporary Access and Construction Easements

Documentation of temporary easements allowing access and entrance to, and work on, property
or streets not owned by the easement holder.

Retention: 2 years after easement expires
16.70 Encroachments

See Schedule 12 Encroachment Permits.
16.80 Fleet And Equipment Records

See Schedule 6 Fleet and Equipment Records.
16.90 Inventories

See Schedule 5 Fixed Asset Records.
16.100 Leases

Agreements through which the special district obtains the right to use property owned by another,
or through which the district grants the right fo use district property to another party, for a
specified period of time in exchange for the payment of rental; includes leases, subleases,
assignments of leases, rental rates, terms of property use, etc. See also Schedule 5 Purchasing
Records — Lease Purchase Records.

Retention: 6 years after termination of lease
16.110 Maintenance, Upkeep And Damage Records

Records documenting the minor maintenance, repair and upkeep of district owned facilities and
property. See also Schedule 16 Work Orders — Property.

Retention: 1 year + current
Chemical Application Records

Records documenting the application of chemicals such as pesticides, herbicides and fertilizers to
parks and other district property. See alsc Schedule 15 Health and Safety Records — Hazardous
Materials Exposure.

Retention: 3 years after application
Damage Records

Records of damage to district property, including signs, trees, park facilities, buildings and fences.

116



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: 3 years after date of last action if not litigated,; if litigated see Schedule 13

Inspection Records

Records documenting periodic inspection of parks and facilities to check for damage and
recommend repairs and maintenance.

Retention: 2 years

16.120 Parks

Historical and informational records regarding each of the district's parks, including
cotrespondence, architectural drawings, park histories, photographs, etc.

Retention: Permanent

16.130 Projects

Construction, renovation ar other building projects on district owned property. See Scheduie 7
Project Files.

16.140 Rights-Of-Way
See Schedule 16 Easements and Rights-of-Way.

16.150 Sale Or Transfer Of Property Records

Records pertaining to transactions for the sale or trade of land, buildings or other real property
owned by the special district.

Relention: Permanent
16.155 Security Records
Automated Access System Records
Records generated by automated systems to show entry and exit from secured areas by
authorized persons using an electronic badge or similar system to gain entry or exit.

Retention: 1 year + current

Entry and Exit Log Sheets
Retained to document entry and exit to and from secured areas.

Retention: 1 year + current
Videotapes Related to Security

Facility Security of District Buildings

117



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Video recordings from security cameras in public areas of district buildings. Security
setups vary and recordings may be continuous, stop-frame or random use. in addition to
visual feed, videos also show date and time indexing information. See 3.735 for
surveillance recordings made in election areas.

Retention: 30 days

16.160 trees

Records pertaining to the planting, removal, care and inventory of trees on district cwned
property.

Tree Inventory
Retention: Until superseded
16.165 Utility Locate Requests
Records of utility and infrastructure locate requests processed by the district.

Retention: 90 days after locate is completed or determined to be the responsibility of another
jurisdiction,

16.170 Vacations - Easements And Rights-Of-Way
See Schedule 10 Vacations — Street, Alley and Right-of-Wa Y.

16.180 Work Orders - Property

Request and authorization forms for repair or maintenance work on district owned facilities, signs,
structures, etc.

Retention: 2 years

118



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

SCHEDULE NO. 17
PUBLIC SAFETY RECORDS

General Description: Records relating to the enforcement and protective service functions of the district.
The specified retention period applies to the information contained within the record, regardiess of the
physical format of the record (paper, microfilm, computer disk or tape, optical disk, efc.).

Duplicate Copies: Provided that no retention period is specified for duplicate copies, retain those
that are created for administrative purposes for 1 year, and retain those created for convenience

or reference purposes until no longer needed or for 1 year, whichever is first. Duplicate coples
should not be retained longer than the record copy.

17.10 Agreements And Contracts

See Schedule 7 Agreermnents and Contracts.
17.30 Civil Defense

See Schedule 17 Emergency Planning and Response.
17.40 Disaster Response Planning

See Schedule 17 Emergency Planning and Response.
17.50 Emergency Planning And Response

Emergency Operations and Management Plans

Records relafing to disaster, emergency and civil defense planning and preparation;
implementation and testing of disaster warning systems and response planning; disaster
response and emergency planning and preparedness of the district. Includes emergency
aperations plans, incident response plans, and disaster management and recovery plans. See
also Schedule 6 Equipment Records.

Retention: 1 year + current after superseded, excepf retain 1 copy for historical purposes
Incident Records — Disasters and Emergencies

Documentation of the extent and impacts of natural or manmade disasters and emergency
incidents and actions taken by the district in response to such incidents; includes records such as
fogs, diaries, damage assessment and response reports, situation and resource allocation
reports, incident plans, resource ordering and tracking, financial documentation, photographs,
and similar incident-related documentation.

Retention: Permanent

Mutual Aid Agreements

119



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

See Schedulfe 7 Agreements and Coniracts,
17.60 Equipment - Public Safety

Records pertaining to equipment used by emergency services districts. See also Schedule 6
Equipment Records.

Emergency 9-1-1 Service
Retention: 5 years after superseded
Warning Systems — Emergencies and Disasters
See Schedule 6 Equipment Records.
17.70 Fire And Rescue Activity Records
Records pertaining to fire suppression and prevention and emergency rescue functions.
Burning Permits
See Scheduls 12 Permit Records.
Call Sheets — Rescue Unit
Retention: 5 years + current
Equipment
See also Schedule 6.
Fire Hydrant Records

Documentation of locations, specifications, maintenance, testing and repair of water hydrants in
the district or special district water system.

Retention: 1 year after hydrant is replaced or removed from service
Pumper Tests and Hose Tests

Retention: 1 year after disposal of equipment

Fire Code

See Schedule 7 Code Book Records.

Fire Code Board of Appeals

120



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

See Schedule 1 Building Board Case Files.
Fire Insurance Rate Maps
See Schedule 7 Maps and Drawings.
Incident Records
Fire Call Sheets
Retention: 5 years + current
Fire Prevention Schedule
Retention: 1 year + current
Incident Investigations

Records pertaining to investigations regarding fires and other incidents. See also
Schedule 17 Hazardous Mafterials.

Fatality
Retention: Permanent
Nonfatality
Retention: 10 years + current
Noncriminal
Retention: 2 years + current
Rescue Incident Reports
Retention: Permanent
Run Sheets — Fire and Rescue
Retention: Permanent
Inspections
Business and School Inspection Records

Records of inspections of commercial establishments and schools.

121



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Retention: Permanent
Intelligence Files (Arson)
Records containing information regarding individuals and groups.
Multiple Contacts
Retention: 5 years
No Further Contact
Retention: 1 year + current
Routine Inspections
Records of routine fire prevention and other related inspections performed by the fire district.
Retention: 3 years + current]
Requests for Service
Retention: 2 years + current
S.A.R.A. Tier Il Reports
Superfund Amendments Reauthorization Act reports.
Retention: 1 year + current
Training Records
See Schedule 15 Training Information.
17.75 Fire District Records (If International Fire Code Is Adopted)

Special districts that adopt the International Fire Code {IFC) should follow the records retention
provisions set out in the IFC as follows, unless a local exception is adopted by resolution.

Approval and Variance Records

Retention: Not less than 5 years or for as long as the structure or activity to which such records
relate remains in existence, unless otherwise provided by other regulations [IFC §104.6.1]

Fire Records

Retention: Nct less than 5 years or for as long as the structure or activity to which such records
relate remains in existence, unless otherwise provided by other regulations [IFC §104.6.3]

122



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADQ SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Inspection Records

Retention: Not less than 5 years or for as long as the structure or activify to which such records

relate remains in existence, unless otherwise provided by other regulations [IFC §104.6.2]
Statistical Records - Fire Department
Statistics regarding the extent of fires and the damage caused by fires.

Retention: Not less than 5 years or for as long as the structure or activity to which such records
relate remains in existence, unless otherwise provided by other regulations [IFC §104.6.3]

17.80 Hazardous Materials

Records relating to hazardous materials regulation, prevention, safety and incident response and
investigation.

Asbestos Removal Permits

See Schedule 12 Permit Records.

Incident Prevention Reports

Retention: 3 years + current

Incident Response Planning

See Schedule 17 Emergency Planning and Response.
Investigations

Records of investigations of hazardous materials incidents.
Criminal Hazardous Materials Incidents

Retention: Permanent

Noncriminal Hazardous Materials Incidents
Retention: 2 years after costs are recovered
Registration — Hazardous Materials

Retention: Permanent

Underground Storage Tank Inspections

See Schedule 11 Environmental Records and Schedule 12 Permit Records.

123




RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Toxic Site {Designated)
See Schedule 11 Environmental Records.
17.90 Emergency Services Records
Logs
Listings kept to track specific routine daily activities.
Dispatch Logs
Retention: 1 year + current
Routine Activity Logs
Documentation of routine home and welfare checks, alarm checks, and similar activities.
Retention: 1 year + current
Traffic Accident Logs
Retention: 2 years + current
Open Records Requests
See 7.235, Open Records Requests.
Reports
Activity Summaries

Routine reports and documentation regarding daily activities and assignments, dispatch
logs, field activity, firef ighter or EMT activity, ride-along records, roll call recerds and
work schedules.

Retention: 1 year + current]
Records Checks
Retention: 2 years + current
Reports — Departmental
See Schedule 7 Reports.

Ride-Along Program Records

124



RECORDS MANAGEMENT MANUAL

COLORADQO SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Records of programs that allow citizens to ride-along with fire fighters or EMS providers.
Approved to Ride-Along
Retention: 3 years + current
Denied Approval to Ride-Along
Retention: Permanent
Liability Waivers
See Schedule 7 Program Records
Training Records

Records documenting training for fire and EMS personnel, test scores and training reports. See
also Schedule 15 Training Recards.

Retention: 5§ years after employee's termination®
17.100 Procedures And Policies

See Schedule 7 Policies and Procedures Documeritation.
17.120 Tape Recordings - Dispatch

Audio tapes recorded to monitor radio transmissions.

Retention: 90 days

125



i |':
n el

=z

=

A
_“J-

-



e

COLORADO
State Archives

Records Management Manual Approval
Request Form
[JCounty [Municipality [JSchoolDistrict/BOCES  []Special District

NAME OF ENTITY
Hanover Fire Protection District

CONTACTPERSON/TITLE:
Carl W Tatum Fire Chief / District Administrator

MAILING ADDRESS:
13325 Old Pueblo Rd Fountain Colorado 80817

TELEPHONE:
719-382-1900

E-MAIL:
Carl.tatum3500@gmail.com

LOCAL EXCEPTIONS:

(List and provide basis and description of any local exceptions for records retention periods that are
specified by formal direction of the local ordinance, Home Rule Charter provision, by board
resolution or formal direction of the school board, governing body, etc., that differ from those set
out in the Records Retention Manual for your specific entity. Use additional pages if needed. )

THE ABOVE ENTITY HEREBY REQUESTS APPROVAL FROM THE COLORADO STATE ARCHIVES TO FOLLOW
THE SPECIFIC ENTITY'S RECORDS RETENTION MANUAL, WITH THE LOCAL EXCEPTIONS INDICATED.

=

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED ENTITY REPRESENTATIVE

February 6, 2020 7 ch v, gz 2&723

DATE OF SUBMITTAL GF REQUEST FOR APPROVAL

Approved 3/29/2023

Revised February 2020



L. |
4
e

. H
i



COLORADO

Division of Fire
Prevention & Control

Deparimert of Puthe Safoty

L

April 3, 2023

Hanover Fire Protection District
17550 S. Peyton HWY

Fountain, CO. 80928 FDID#. 04154 Response ID#:

RE: 2022-23 CO Firefighter Safety and Disease Prevention (FFSDP) Grant

Dear Fire Chief Cart Tatum,

Congratulations, DFPC awards your agency the 2022-23 Firefighter Safety and Disease Prevention Grant.
Please promptly notify DFPC’s Grants Manager of your agency’s decision to accept or reject this award on
page 2 of this grant agreement. The agency’s executive must complete, sign and date the award.
Submit this completed agreement with your award decision to the DFPC grants email by April 17, 2023.

Your department s eligible for reimbursement of purchased approved items listed below, up to the awarded:
priority item, quantity and amount. The grant award amount approved by the Director is § 18,534.00.

DFPC advises purchasing approved items upon acceptance of this award but no later than May 19, 2023.

Your agency is eligible for reimbursement of the following FFSDP Grant equipment and/or training:

Grant Approved Priority tems for Purchase

Priority Item Name & Description Quantity Unit Cost Extended ACTUALS

Required Price *(DFPC Staff)

M5A G1 RIT pack complete w/bag with: EXTENDAIRE II, 6"

URC quick filt hose, G1 face piece MED, G1 MMR regulator, 3 $4,689.00  $14,067.00  0-00
remote gauge, URC fitting

G1 60 Minute Air Cylinder Ultra Light

3 $1,489.00  $4,467.00  §0.00

$0.00

$ 0.00

§0.00

GRANT TOTAL $1853400 . o

*Totals are subject to change as Grants are limited to $20,000 maximum.

FFSDP Grant Reimbursements of approved purchases is pursuant to this grant award and must comply with
state fiscal and procurement rules including, upon payment of goods & services received. Agencies must
provide complete reimbursement documentation outlined on page 2 of this agreement no later than
October 31, 2023. Incomplete reimbursement requests including non-compliance with outstanding

follow-up requests of necessary documentation are ineligible for payment and may not be honored.
The Reimbursement Request deadline is mandatory without exception.

Grant recipients are required to maintain complete grant related financial records for a period of five (5
years after the date of the grant award letter. The 2023 CO Firefighter Safety and Disease Prevention
Grant period will close on December 30, 2023.




Page 2

To receive grant reimbursement submit a complete FFSDP Grant Reimbursement Request Packet
including documentation outlined below to the Grants Manager at lori.tynch-brill@state.co.us .

Please make a copy of grant receipts for your records. Items purchased and requested for reimbursement
must match those outlined in the signed grant award agreement. The DFPC reserves the right to withhold
reimbursement for items not originally requested and/or approved.

A Completed Firefighter Safety and Disease Prevention Grant Reimbursement Request Packet consists of:

« An itemized vendor invoice(s) containing the Approved Item(s), unit costs, quantity and total.

+ Proof of payment including, copies of original payment, such as a cleared check or credit
card receipt, as well as the corresponding bank and/or credit card statement.

e All of the following forms must be completed, signed & submitted by your agency to DFPC:

o  Acompleted and signed W-9;

o A completed and signed Reimbursement Request Form, and

o A copy of the complete award contract dated, with your name printed, and signed
indicating your understanding and agreement of the grant process, acceptance of the
terms and conditions outlined therein. You are encouraged to make a copy of this contract
for your records.

Submit a completed Grant Reimbursement Request to the Grants email at lori.lynch-brill@state.co.us.
Purchased items must match the grant award. A complete reimbursement packet is required as outlined
above prior to any reimbursement.

STATE’S RIGHT TO CANCEL

This grant opportunity does not obligate the state to award a contract and the state reserves the right to cancel
the solicitation if it is considered to be in its best interest due to tack of funding, early termination, public
interests, agency priorities or other considerations. DFPC reserves the right to withhold reimbursement inconsistent
with the original grant application, for items not awarded through grant award letter(s) including, Reconsideration
and Equipment Substitution, or any purchase made that violates state fiscal rules and procurement policies will not
be honored. Mode! Smalil Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions apply in addition to Colorado Fiscal Rules
including the Procurement Code policies including, but not limited to Conflicts of Interests.

Accept Award  [Y/] Reject Award/unable to use grant funds D

Please have the organizational executive or financial representative print, sign and date this award letter
indicating understanding and agreement with the grant process, acceptance and agreement of these terms
as outlined herein. Please make a copy of this signed award letter for your records.

Print Name C A#L ¢/ Z/pze s
. /, B - B
Sign Name o

pate /0 APl Zoa 3

Please submit inquiries, and reimbursement requests with supporting documentation to lori.lynch-brill@state.co.us .

Sincerely,

oM 7'”‘
- ’Ml Hass
Lisa Pine, State Fire Training Director
Colorado Division of Fire Preventicn & Control

700 Kipling Street, Suite 1000, Lakewaod, CO 80215 cdpsweb.state.co.us E @

Jared S. Polis, Governor | Stan Hilkey, Executive Director



Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the

o g . .o . ter. D t
Setiuto s Identification Number and Certification e el Gk g

Name {as shown on your income tax return)

Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from abave

HANOVER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Exemptions (codes apply only to certain
entities, not individuals; see instructions on

Check appropriate box for federal tax classification:

ndividualfSale Proprietor or C Corporation DS Corporation D Partnership
single member LLC

page 3}
Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P—partnershlp) - Exempt payes code (if any) _
Exemption from FATCA reporting
Note. For a single-member LLC that 1s disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax dassification of the

single-member owner. code (if any),
V {Applies to accounts maintamed oulside the k1.S.)
|_] Other(seeinstructions)™ Government
Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) 1 3 3 2 5 OLD PU EB L O RD Purchase Order address if different (optional)
City, state, and ZIP code

FOUNTAIN COLORADO 80817
List account number(s) here {optional) Contact name Contact Email

Carl W Tatum carl.tatum3500@gmail.com

IEEXAN  Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on the “Name” ling | Soclal security number ]
to avoid backup withholding. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part | instructions on page 3. For other

entities, it is your employer identification number {EIN). If you do not have a number, see How fo gef a
TiN on page 3.

Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose [ Emplayer identification number
number to enter.

84-1260436
EEl Certification
Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:
1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: {a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b} | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue

Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or {c) the iRS has notified me that | am
no longer subject to backup withholding, and

Print or type
See Specific Instructions on page 2.

3. lam a U.S. citizen or other U.S. persen {defined below), and
4. The FATCA code(s} entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withhelding
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and
genera!ly. payments other than mterest and dividends, yuu € not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the

ome-04/10/2023

Sign Signature of
Here U.S. person > L/

Have you ever worked for the State of Colorado? OYes @ No

Have you ever worked for a PERA Employer? QYes @ No

Business Types (check all that apply):

CO Location/HQ in CO

CO Location/HQ out of CO

No CO Location/HQ in US

No CQ Location/HQ cut of US

Has Paid Compensation Tax

Has Not Paid Compensation Tax

African American

Asian Pacific American

Subcontinent Asian American

Hispanic American

Native American

CDOT Certified Emerging Small Business
CDOT Certified Disadvantaged Small Business
Women Owned

Woman Business Enterprise

Veteran Owned

Disabled Vet Business Enterprise
Disadvantaged Veteran Enterprise
Service Disabled Veteran

Vietnam Veteran

Veteran Business Enterprise
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Small Disadvantaged Business
Disabled Owned

8(A) Designation

HUBZone Certified

Labor Surplus

Historical Black Colleges & Universities
Small Business

Airport Concession Disadvantaged Business



General Instructions

Section references are to the Interal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. The IRS has created a page on IRS_gov for information
about Form W-9, at www.irs.gov/w8. Information about any future developments
affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) will be posted
on that page.

Purpose of Form

A person who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your
correct taxpayer idendification number (TIN}) to report, for example, income paid to
you, payments made to you in setllement of payment card and third party network
transactions, real estate fransactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cangellatioh of debf, or contfibutions you made
to an IRA.

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U_S. person {including a resident alien), to
provide yaur correct TIN to the persan requesting it (the requester) and, when
applicabte, to:

1. Cerlify that the TIN you are giving is correct {or you are waiting for a number
to be issued),

2. Cerlify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If
applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of
any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the
withholding tax on foreign partners’ share of effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA, code{s) entered on this form (if any} indicating that you
are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct.

Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form gther than
Form W-8 fo request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is
substantially similar to this Form W.9,

Definition of a .S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a
U.S. person if you are:

» An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,

= A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in
the United States or under the laws of the United States,

= An estate (other than a foreign estate}, or
= A domestic trust {as defined in Regulafions section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business

in the United States are generally required fo pay a withholding tax under

section 1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively connected taxable
income from such business. Fuither, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not
been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume
that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 witkholding tax.
Therefore, if you are a

U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the
United States, provide Farm W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status
and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership ingome.

In the cases below, the Tollowing person must give Form W-9 to the parinership
for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its
allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business
in the United States:

= In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.8. owner of the
disregarded entity and not the entity,

= In the case of a grantor frust with a U.S. granter or other U.S. owner, generally,
the U.5. granior or other U_S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust, and

= In the case of a U.S. frust {(other than a grantor trest), the U.S. trust (other than a
grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Fareign person, If you are a foreign person or the U.S, branch of a foreign bank
that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use
the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax
an Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident
alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on
certain types of income. Howevar, most tax treaties contain a provision known as
a “saving clause.” Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an
exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee
has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the
saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types
of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following
five items:

i. The ireaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you
claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.

3. The article number (cr locaticn) in the tax treaty that contains the saving
clause and its exceptions.

4. The type and amcunt of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.

5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty
arficle.

Example. Arlicle 20 of the U.S.-China income tax ireaty allows an exemption
from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinase student temporarly present

in the United States. Under U.S. [aw, this student will become a resident alien for tax
purpases if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years.

However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30,
1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese
student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who
qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protoeol) and is relying an
this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship
income would atiach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information
described above to support that exemption,

If you are a norwesident alien or a foreign entity, give the reguester the
appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233,

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments fo you must
under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS a percentage of such
payments. This s called “backup withholding.” Payments that may be subject to
backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt inferest, dividends, broker and
barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in
seftlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain
payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to
backup withholding.

You will nat be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give
the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your
taxable interest and dividends an your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup
withholding if:

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part Il instuctions on page 3
for details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject o backup withholding because you did
not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return {for reportable interest
and dividends only}, or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup
withhelding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened
after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt
payee code on page 3 and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form
W-8 for more information.

Also see Special rules for parfnerships on page 1.

What is FATCA reporting? The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA)
requires a participaling foreign financial insfitution to report all United States account
holders that are specified United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from
FATCA reperiing. See Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3 and the
Instructions for the Requester of Form W-@ for more information,

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be
an exempt payee if you are ne longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving
reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to
provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S
corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new
Form W-g if the name or TIN changes for the account, for example, if the grantor
of a grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your comect TIN to a requester, you are
subject to a penalty of $50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to
reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false Information with respect to withholding. If you make a
false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding,
you are subject to a $500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information, Willfully falsifying certifications or
affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/ar
imprisenment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law,
the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Name

If you are an individual, you must generally enter the name shown on your income
tax return. However, if you have changed your last name, for instance, due to
marrigge without informing the Social Security Administration of the name change,
enter your first name, the last name shown on your social security card, and your
new last name,

If the account is in joint names, list first, and then circle, the name of the person
or entity whose number you entered in Part | of the form.

Sole proprietor. Enter your individual name as shown on your income tax return
on the “Name” line. You may enter your business, trade, or “doing business as
{DBA}" name on the “Business name/disregarded eniity name” line.

Partnership, C Corporation, or $§ Corporation. Enter the entity's name on the
“Name” line and any business, trade, or “doing business as {DBA) name” on the
“Business namefdisregarded entity name” line.

Disregarded entity. For LS. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as



items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part | should
sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person Identified
aon the “Name” line must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee code earlier,

Signature requirements. Complele the certification as indicated in items 1
through 5 helow.

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before
4984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give
your carrect TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after
1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign
the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject lo backup
withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you
must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form,

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross
aut item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to
sign fhe certification unless you have been notified that you have previously
given an incorrect TIN. “Other payments” include payments made in the course
of the requester’s trade or business for rents, Toyalties, goods {other than bills for
merchandise), medical and health care services {including payments to
corporations}), payments io a nonemployee for services, payments made in
setflement of payment card and third party network fransactions, payments to
cerfain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross praceeds paid to
attorneys (including payments to carporations).

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured
property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under
section 529}, IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or
distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but
you do not have to sign the cerfification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account: Give name and $5N of:

1. Individual The individual
2. Two or more individuals {joint The actual owner of the account o,
account) if combined funds, the first
individual on the account
3. Custodian account of a minor The minor -
(Unifarm Gift to Minors Act)
4, a. The usual revocable savings The grantor-trustee '

trust (grantor is also trustee)

b. So-called trust account that is
not a legal or valid trust under
state law

The actual owner !

5. Sole proprietorship or disregarded The owner
entity owned by an individual
6. Grantor trust filing under Optional The grantor”

Form 1092 Filing Method 1 (see
Regulation section 1.671-4{B)}2)(i)(A))

For this type of account: Give name and EIN of:

-

. Disregarded entity not owned by an | The owner
individual

A valid trust, estate, or pension trust | Legal entity”
Corporation or LLC electing

corporate status on Form 8832 or
Form 2553

oo

The corporation

10. Association, club, religious, The organization
charitable, educational, or other
tax-exempt organization

11. Partnership aor multi-member LL.C The partnership

12. A broker or registered nominee

13. Account with the Department of
Agriculture In the name of a public
entity {such as a state or local
govemnment, school district, or
prison) that receives agricultural
program payments

14, Grantor trust fiing under the Form
1041 Filing Method or the Optional
Form 1008 Filing Method 2 {see
Regulation section 1.671-4{b)(2)((HEN

The broker or nominee
The public entity

The trust

Visit IRS.gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk
1

List first and circle the name of the persen whose nurnber you furnish. i only one persen on a
joint account has an SSN, that person's numbar must be furnished.

2
Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.
3

You must show your individual nama and you may algo entar your business or "DBA” name on
the “Business name/disregarded entity” name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN {if you have
gne), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN,

1ist first and cirdle the name of the trust, estate, ar pension trust. {Do not furnish the TIN of the
personal representative or trustee unless the legal endify itself is not designated in the account tille.}
Also see Special rules for partnerships on page 1.

*Note. Grantor alea must pravide a Form W= to trustes of trust.

Note. If no name is circled when more than cne name is listed, the number will be
considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

ldentity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your
name, social security number (SSN), or ether identifying information, without your
permission, to commit fraud or other erimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to
get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:
» Protect your SSN,
= Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
« Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

if your iax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from
the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS
notice or letter.

if your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you
are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity
or eredit repori, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit
Form 14039,

For mare information, see Publication 4535, 1dentity Theft Prevention and Victim
Assistance.

Victims of identify theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system
problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved
through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS)
assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at
1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-§28-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious eémails or phishing schemes. Phishing is the
creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business
emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely
claiming o be an established legiiimate enterprise in an atiempt to scam the user
into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiaie contacis with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does
not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the
PIN numbers, passwards, of similar secret access information for their credit card,
hank, or other financial actounts.

It you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this
message to phishing@irs.gov. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo,
or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration at
1-800-366-4484, You can forward suspicious emails 1o the Federal Trade
Commission at: spam@uce.gov or contact them at www.fic.gow/dtheft or 1-877-
IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4334).
Exemption from FATCA raporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from
reporting under FATGA. These catles apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained
outside of the United States by certain joreign financial instituions. Therefore, if you are only submitting
{his form for an account you hold in the United Slates, you may leave this field blank. Caonsult with the
parson requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements.
A requester may indicate that a cade is not required by providing you with a Form W-8 with "Not
Applicable” {or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.
A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501¢a) or any individual retirament plan as defined in
section 7701{(a)(37)
B—The United States or any of its agencies or insumentalities
C—A stafe, fhe District of Calumbia, a U.S. commanwealth or possession, or any of their political
subdivisions or instrumentalities
D—A corporation the stock of which is ragularly traded on one or more established securiies markets, as
described n Regulations section 1,1472-1{c){1}{i}
E—A corporation that is a member of the sama expanded affilialed group as & comporation described in
Regulations section 1.1472-1{2)(1)()
F—#, dealer in securities, sommadities, or darivative finandial instrumants {including nofional principad
contracls, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or
any state
G—A toal estate investment trust
He-A regulated investment company as defined in secton B51 or an entity registered at all imes during
the fax year under ihe Investment Company Ack of 1840
I—A comman trust fund as defined in section 584{a)
J—A bank as defined in section 581
K—A broker
L—A frust exempt from fax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1}
M—A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan o section 457{g} plan
Mote, You may wish {o consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether
the FATCA code andfor exempt payee code should be completed.



an entity separate from its owner is treated as a “disregarded entity.” See
Regulation section 301.7701-2(c){2)jii). Enter the owner's name on the “Name”
line. The name of the entity entered on the “Name” line shoukd never be a
disregarded entity. The name on the “Name” line must be the name shown on
the income tax return on which the income should be reparted, For example, if g
foreign LLC that Is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S, federal {ax purposes
ias a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required {e be
provided on the “Name” fine. If the direct owner of the entily is also a
disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax
purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on the “Business
name/disregarded entity name” line, If the owner of the disregarded entity is a
foreign person, the owner must complete an appropriate Form W-B instead of a
Form W-9. This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN.

Note. Check the appropriate box for the LS. federa) tax classification of the
person whose name is entered on the “Name” line {Individualfsale proprietor,
Partnership, C Corporation, § Corporation, Trustfestate).

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the person identified on the "Name® line is
an LLC, check the “Limited liability company” box only and enter the
appropriate code for the U.S. federal tax classification in the space provided. If
you are an LLG that is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purpases,
enter “P" for partnership. If you are an LLC that has filed a Form 8832 or a Form
2553 fo be taxed as a corporation, enter "C" for corporation or “S” for §
cotporation, as appropriate, If you are an LLG that is disregarded as an entity
separate from its owner under Regulation section 301.7701-3 {except for
employment and excise 1ax), do not check the LLC box vnless the owner of the
LLC {required to be identified on the “Name” line} is another LLC that is not
disregarded for U.S. federal tax purposes. If the LLG is disregarded as an entity
separate from its owner, enter the appropriate 1ax classification of the owner
identified on the “Name” line.

Other entities. Enter yowr business name as shown on tequired U.5. federal
tax documents ¢n the “Name” line. This name should match the name shown
an the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any
busingss, trade, or DBA name on the “Business name/disregarded entity
name” line.

Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding andfor FATCA reporting, enter in the
£xemptions box, any code(s) that may apply to you. See Exempt payee code and
Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3.

Exempt payee code. Generally, individuals {including sole proprietors} are not
exemnpt fram backup withholding. Comporations are exempt from backup
withholding for certain payments, such as interest and dividends, Corporations
are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of
payment card or third party network transactions.

Note. If you are exempt from backup withholding, you should sffll complete this
form to avoid pessible erronecus backup withholding.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding:

1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, ora
custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requitemnents
of section 401(f)(2)

2—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3—A state, the District of Columbia, a passession of the United States, or any of
their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4—A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or
instrumentalities

5---A, torperation

6—A dealer in securities or commaodities required to register in the United
States, the District of Columbla, or a possession of the United States

T—A futures commission merchant registered with the Comrodity Futures
Trading Commission

8—A real estate investment trust

8—An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment
Company Act of 1940

10—A common frust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a) 11—
A financial institution

12—A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or
custodian

13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947

The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup
withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

Barter exchange fransactions and
patronage dividends

Exempt payees 1 through 4

Payments over $600 required to be
reported and direct sales over $5,DDG1

Generally, exempt payees
1 through 5

Payments made in settlement of
payment card or third party network
transactions

Exempt payees 1 through 4

[F the payment is for .. . THEN the payment is exempt for . . .

Interest and dividend payments All exempt payees except

for 7

Broker transactions Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6
through 11 and all C corporations. S
corporations must not enter an exempt
payee code because they are exempt
only for sales of noncovered securities
acquired prior to 2012,

1See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellanecus Income, and its instructions.

? However, the following payments made to a corporation and reporfable on Form
1699-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medica!l and health care
paymenis, attorneys’ fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney, and payments for
services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that
are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting
this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign
financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for an account
you held in the United States, you may leave this field blank.

Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial
institution is subject to these requirements.

A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual
refirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

B—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

C~A state, the District of Columbia, & possession of the United States, or any of
their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D—A corporation the stock of which is regulasly traded on one or more established
securities markets, as described in Reg. section 1.1472-1 {e{ 1)}

E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a
corporation described in Reg. section 1,1472-1 (e 1))

F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments
(including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is
registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state

G—A real estate investment trust

H—A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity
registered at all times during the tax vear under the Investment Company Act of
1940

I—A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a) J—

A bank as defined in section 581

K-—A broker

L—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947 (a)(1)
M—A tax exempt frust under a section 403(b) plan or sectior 457(g) plan

Part |. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TiN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not
have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer
identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not
have an ITIN, see How fo gef a TIN below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your $5N
or EiN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your $SN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its
awner (see Limited Liability Company (LLC} on page 2), enter the owner's SSN {or
EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity’s EIN. If the LLC i
classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN
combinations.

How to get a TIN. if you do nat have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply
for an S5N, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Gard, from your local
Secial Security Administration office or get this form onfine at www.ssa.gov. You
may alse get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213, Use Form W-7, Application for
IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form 8§54,
Application for Employer ldentification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply
for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs. gov/businesses and
clicking an Employer Identification Number (EIN} under Starting a Business. You
can get Forms W-7 and 55-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-
TAX-FORM(1-800-829-3676).

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN
and write “Applied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it
to the requester. Far interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made
with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get
a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withhalding on
payments. The 80-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be
subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to
the requester.

Note. Entering “Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that
yau intend fo apply for ene soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the
appropriate Form W-8,

Part ll. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. persaon, or resident alien,
sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if



Waterway of New Mexico LLC WATERWAY, Estimate
PO Box 1182 s

Moriarty, NM 87035 US
5058005298
bdirks@waterwayinc.com

www.waterwayinc.com

ADDRESS
Kevin Junglen
Hanover Fire Department

ESTIMATE # DATE EXPIRATION DATE
3081 04/07/2023 07/07/2023

ACTWITY SERVICE QTy RATE AMOUNT

Hose Testing Testing of all fire hose according to NFPA 1962 13,000 0.31 4,030.00T
standards

Waterway makes every effort io secure all hose
in the same locations as provided. we are not
responsible for apparatus that does not have a
provision to secure hose as per NFPA 1901.
Chapter 15.10.5, 2016 Edition.

A late fee of $100 will be applied if a
representative of the fire department does not
contact a Waterway representative after 1 hour
or later of the agreed-upon start time.

Ground Ladder Testing all ground ladders according to NFPA 144 1.65 237.60T
Testing 1932 standards **Heat sensors are an
additional charge™*
Tentative Scheduie Date: June 27th & 28th 2023 SUBTOTAL 4,267.60
TAX 344 .08
TOTAL
$4,611.68
Accepted By Accepted Date

Thank you for your business!






Waterway of New Mexico LLC WATE RWAIC
PO Box 1182 SESmE.
Moriarty, NM 87035 US
5058005298
bdirks@waterwayinc.com
www.waterwayinc.com
ADDRESS
Kevin Junglen
Hanover Fire Department
ESTIMATE # DATE EXPIRATION DATE
3082 04/07/2023 07/07/2023
ACTIVITY SERVICE QTyYy RATE
Pump Testing (1-5) Test all pumps according to NFPA 1911 5 330.00
standards (1-5 pumps test)
Milage Pump Testing Mileage (Mileage costs will be 254 1.10
split equally with all departments participating
on the service testing, **** departments), From
Moriarty to Fountain, to Hanover to Moriarty =
708 miles fotal
Tentative Schedule Date: June 27th & 28th 2023 SUBTOTAL
TAX
TOTAL

Accepted By

Accepted Date

Thank you for your business!

Estimate

AMOUNT
1,650.00T

279.40T7

1,929.40
155.56

$2,084.96






